Sr.No	Name of the Department/Board /Corpo. Auth.	Name of the work/Notice/Tender	date/closing	Amount/EMD (Approx) in Rupees	Website of the Department/Board/Corporation	Nodal Officer/Contact detail/E-Mail	Tender Reference No. /Tender No.
1.	·	Procurement of Real Time Water Quality Monitoring data in Haryana at 5 locations on Rivers	submission : 06.06.2023	4.5 Crore/- EMD- Rs. 13.5Lakh only)	1	Sh. Jatinder Pa Singh, Sr Environmental Engineer, 0172-2577870-73 (Extension No 110)	

Haryana State Pollution Control Board

Address: C-11, Sec-6, Panchkula, Haryana (India)

INTERNATIONAL COMPETITIVE BIDDING

FOR

SUPPLY OF DATA OF REAL TIME WATER QUALITY MONITORING STATIONS (RTWQMS)

CONTENTS

VOLUME – I INVITATION FOR BIDS Page No.

Detail Notice Inviting Tender		7
	Instructions to bidder on Electronic Tendering System	
	Guideline for Online Payments in e-tendering	11
	Invitation For Bids (IFB) International Competitive Bidding	15
	Schedule Of Tender	17
	List of the City / Locations where RTWQMS will be installed	18

Section I Instruction to bidders

1.	Definitions	20
2.	Introduction	
3.	Bidding documents	26
4.	Preparation and Submission of Bid	28
5.	Preparation of Techno-commercial Bid	30
6.	Preparation of Financial Bid	31
7.	Completion and Submission of Bid	31
8.	Opening and Evaluation of Techno-commercial Bid	32
9.	Notification of Successful Techno-commercial Bid	34
10.	Opening of Financial Bid	34
11.	Examination of Financial Bid	34
12.	Evaluation and Comparison of Financial Bid	34
13.	Award of Contract	35
14.	Performance Security	36
15.	15. Expense of Bid	
16.	Responsibility for information supplied	37
17.	Advance Payment and Security	37

Section II Scope of works

1.	Details of Project Structure	39
2.	Scope of work	39
3.	Minimum Specifications	39
4.	Desired Output for RTWQMS Equipment	39
5.	Handing over of RTWQMS	40
6.	Relocation of RTWQMS	40
7.	Penalties	40
8.	Schedule	40
Annexure 01	Annexure 1 of Section II	41

Section III Form of techno-commercial bid

Attachment 1	Form of Questionnaire	43
Attachment 2	Certificate of Partner of the Bidder in India	44
Attachment 3	Form of Letter of Authority	46
Attachment	Form of certificates of supply of spares and	48
3A	consumables by manufacturer	
Attachment 4	Form of Certificate of Country of Origin	49
Attachment 5	Form of Certificate of Carrying out work of RTWQMS by	50
Attachmant C	the Partner in India	Г1
Attachment 6	Form of Equipment List	<u>51</u>
Attachment 7	Form of Manufacturers List	52
Attachment 8 A	Proforma for Financial Capability for Bidder	53
Attachment 8 B	Proforma for Performance Statement for Manufacturer	54
Attachment 8 C	Proforma for Performance Statement for Authorized Representative of the Manufacturer	55
Attachment 9	Capability & Experience of O&M Partner	56
Attachment 10	Form for Pre-requisites for Installation of equipment	57
Attachment 11	Deviation Schedule	58
Attachment 12	List of Banks acceptable for submission of bank Guarantees for performance Securities	59
Attachment 13	List of Banks acceptable for submission of bank Guarantees for advance payment: Performa securities for deeds of joint undertaking	63
Attachment 14	Pre contract integrity pact	65

Section IV Form of financial bid

Attachment-1 Bid Form	73
-------------------------	----

Section V General conditions of contract (G.C.C)

1.	Definitions	75
2.	Intent of Contract	75
3.	Performance of Works	75
4.	Use of Contract Documents and Information	76
5.	Location	77
6.	Language and Calendar	77
7.	Site Condition	77
8.	Country of Origin	77
9.	Code and Standard	77
10.	Protection and Safety	78
11.	Work Schedule	78

1.2	Ducingtion Formation	70
12.	Projection Formation	78
13.	Installation	79
14.	Inspection and Test	79 79
15.	15. Completion	
16.	Submission of Documents	80
17.	Payment	80
18.	Prices	80
19.	Performance Security	80
20.	Assignment	81
21.	Delays in the Contractor's Performance	81
22.	Liquidated Damages	82
23.	Suspension of Work	82
24.	Termination for Default	82
25.	Force Majeure	84
26.	26. Resolution of Disputes	
27.		
28.	28. Injury and Damage	
29. Effectiveness of contract		87
30.	Laws and regulations	87
31.	Notices	87
32.	Obligations Of The Service Provider	88
33.	Service Provider's Personnel	90
34.	Obligations of the Employer	91
35.	Payments to the Service Provider	91
36.	Quality Control	93
Attachment-1	Performance Security Form	94
Attachment-2	Form for Contract Agreement	96
Attachment-3	Attachment-3 Proforma of Certificate for issue by the HSPCB after	
	Successful Commissioning of Equipment	

VOLUME II TECHNICAL SPECIFICATIONS FOR RTWQMS

1.0	Background	102
2.0	Scope of Service	102
2.1	Validation of data	103
3.0	Description, Requirement and Specification of Services	103
3.1	Data Collection	103
3.1.1	Station Parameters and Measurement Specifications	103
3.1.2.1	Fixed Stations	104
3.1.2.2	Floating Stations	104
3.2	Data Collection and Delivery	104
3.2.1	Data Collection	104
3.2.2	Data Storage	104
3.3	Quality Assurance and Control through Sensor	105
	Calibration	
3.3.1.1	Calibration Frequency	105
3.3.2	Traceable Standards	105

3.3.3	Calibration Results	105
3.3.4	Documentation	105
3.4	Mandatory Measurement Conditions	105
3.4.1	Representativeness of Data	106
3.4.1.1	Minimum Flow	106
3.4.1.2	Measurement Depth	106
3.6	Completeness of Data Requirement for Payment	106
3.7	Parameters to be measured and Specifications	
Appendix A	Description of the Services	108
Annexure 1	Annexure 1 Parameters	
Annexure 2	Annexure 2 Qualification Information	
Annexure 3	Annexure 3 Declaration format for customs /excise duty exemption	
Appendix B		

Important: Bidders are expected to examine the Bidding Documents carefully and are deemed to have received and read all documents. It shall be the responsibility of the Bidder to request copies of any missing documents. Failures to do so will be at the Bidder's risk.



HARYANA STATE POLLUTION CONTROL BOARD

C-11, SECTOR-6, PANCHKULA Ph. 0172-2577870-73

Email-hspcbscientific@gmail.com

LISPGB

The Global e-tenders are hereby invited on the behalf of Haryana State Pollution Control Board under **Two Bid System** for the following works to be carried out from the eligible parties as per details given below.

Tender Ref. No.	HSPCB/e-Tender/		
Description of Item	Procurement of Real Time Water Quality Monitoring data in Haryana at 5 locations on Rivers		
Quantity	5 (Five)		
Estimated Cost	4.5 Crore		
Earnest Money	13.5 Lakh		
Tender Fee (Non-refundable)	Rs. 5000		
e-service Fees (Non -refundable)	Rs. 1180/-		
Start date of bid submission	06.06.2023		
Expiry date and time for Bid preparation &submission	21.06.2023 till 05.00 PM		
Date and time of Tender Opening (Technical Bid Part-I)	22.06.2023		
Date and time of Tender Opening (Financial Bid Part-II)	To be intimated later		
Expiry date and time forEMD of Bid submission	21.06.2023 till 05.00 PM		

The complete bidding documents, fee details, technical specifications and key dates can be viewed/downloaded from the web sites https://etenders.hry.nic.in and www.hspcb.gov.in Bid through any other mode shall not be entertained. Please note that Chairman, HSPCB reserves the right to accept or reject the tendering process at any stage without assigning any reason whatsoever.

Member Secretary Haryana State Pollution Control Board

DETAIL NOTICE INVITING TENDER

e-Tender is invited for purchase of below mentioned items in single stage two cover system i.e. Request for Pre- Qualification / Technical Bid (online Bid under PQQ / Technical Envelope) and Request for Financial Bid (comprising of price bid Proposal under online available Commercial Envelope):-

Sr. No.	
Description of work/ Items	Procurement of Real Time Water Quality Monitoring data in Haryana at 5 locations on Rivers
EMD to be deposited by Bidder	13.5 Lakh
Tender Document Fee & eServiceFee (Rs.)	Rs. 5000/-(Tender document Fees) and Rs. 1180/-(e service fees)
Start Date of Bid Submission	06.06.2023
Expiry Date & Time of Bid of EMD Submission	22.06.2023 till 05.00 PM
Expiry Date & Time of Bid Submission	22.06.2023 till 05.00 PM

Under this process, the Pre-qualification/ Technical online bid Application as well as online Price Bid shall be invited at single stage under two covers i.e. PQQ/Technical & Commercial Envelope. Eligibility and qualification of the Applicant will be first examined based on the details submitted online under first cover (PQQ or Technical) with respect to eligibility and qualification criteria prescribed in this Tender document. The Price Bid under the second cover shall be opened for only those Applicants whose PQQ/ Technical Applications are responsive to eligibility and qualifications requirements as per Tender document.

- The payment for Tender Document Fee and e-Service Fee shall be made by eligible bidders online directly through Debit Cards & Internet Banking Accounts and the payment for EMD can be made online directly through RTGS/NEFT Please refer to 'Online Payment Guideline' available at the Single e-Procurement portal of GoH (Govt. of Haryana) and also mentioned under the Tender Document.
- Intending bidders will be mandatorily required to online sign-up (create user account) on the website https://etenders.hry.nic.in to be eligible to participate in the e-Tender. He / She will be required to make online payment of Rs.
 13.5 Lakh towards EMD fee. The intended bidder fails to pay EMD fee under thestipulated time frame shall not be allowed to submit his / her bids for the respective event / Tenders.
- 3. The interested bidders must remit the funds at least T+1 working day (Transaction day + One working Day) in advance and make payment via RTGS /NEFT to the beneficiary account number specified under the online generated challan. The intended bidder / Agency thereafter will be able to successfully verify their payment online, and submit their bids on or before the expiry date & time of the respective events/Tenders at https://etenders.hry.nic.in.

The interested bidders shall have to pay mandatorily e-Service fee (under document fee - Non refundable) of Rs.1180/- (Rupee One Thousand Only) online by using the service of secure electronic gateway. The secure electronic payments gateway is an online interface between bidders & online payment authorization networks.

The Payment for document fee/ e-Service fee can be made by eligible bidders online directly through Debit Cards & Internet Banking.

The Bidders can submit their tender documents (Online) as per the dates mentioned in the key dates:-

Key Dates

Sr. No.	Department Stage	Bidder's Stage	Start date and time	Expiry date and time
1	Tender Document	Bid Submission	06.06.2023	21.06.2023till 05.00 PM
3	Technical Bid Opening		22.06.202	23
4	Financial Bid Opening		To be intimated later on	

Important Note:

- 1) The Applicants/bidders have to complete "Application / Bid Preparation & Submission" stage on scheduled time as mentioned above. If any Applicant / bidder failed to complete his / her aforesaid stage in the stipulated online time schedule for this stage, his / her Application/bid status will be considered as "Applications / bids not submitted".
- 2) Applicant/Bidder must confirm & check his/her Application/bid status after completion of his/her all activities for e-bidding.
- 3) Applicant/Bidder can rework on his/her bids even after completion of "Application/Bid Preparation & submission stage" (Application/Bidder Stage), subject to the condition that the rework must take place during the stipulated time frame of the Applicant/Bidder Stage.
- 4) In the first instance, the online payment details of tender document fee + e-Service and EMD & PQQ/Technical Envelope shall be opened. Henceforth financial bid quoted against each of the item by the shortlisted bidder/ Agency wherever required shall be opened online in the presence of such bidders/ Agency who either themselves or through their representatives choose to be present. The bidder can submit online their bids as per the dates mentioned in the schedule/Key Dates above.

The bids shall be submitted online in two separate envelopes:

Envelope 1: Technical Bid

The bidders shall upload the required eligibility & technical documents online in the Technical Bid.

Envelope 2: Commercial Bid

The bidders shall quote the prices in price bid format under Commercial/financial Bid.

Instructions to bidder on Electronic Tendering System

These conditions will over-rule the conditions stated in the tender documents, wherever relevant and applicable

1. Registration of bidders on e-Procurement Portal:-

All the bidders intending to participate in the tenders process online are required to get registered on the centralized e -

Procurement Portal i.e. https://etenders.hry.nic.in. Please visit the website for more details.

2. Obtaining a Digital Certificate:

- a) The Bids submitted online should be encrypted and signed electronically with a Digital Certificate to establish the identity of the bidder bidding online. These Digital Certificates are issued by an Approved Certifying Authority, by the Controller of Certifying Authorities, Government of India.
- b) A Digital Certificate is issued upon receipt of mandatory identity (i.e. Applicant's PAN Card) and Address proofs and verification form duly attested by the Bank Manager / Post Master / Gazetted Officer. Only upon the receipt of the required documents, a digital certificate can be issued. For more details please visit the website https://etenders.hry.nic.in.
- c) The bidders may obtain Class-II or III digital signature certificate from any Certifying Authority or Sub-certifying Authority authorized by the Controller of Certifying Authorities or may obtain information and application format and documents required for the issue of digital certificate from.
- d) The bidder must ensure that he/she comply by the online available important guidelines at the portal https://etenders.hry.nic.in for Digital Signature Certificate (DSC) including the e-Token carrying DSCs.
- e) Bid for a particular tender must be submitted online using the digital certificate (Encryption & Signing), which is used to encrypt and sign the data during the stage of bid preparation. In case, during the process of a particular tender, the user loses his digital certificate (due to virus attack, hardware problem, operating system or any other problem) he will not be able to submit the bid online. Hence, the users are advised to keep a backup of the certificate and also keep the copies at safe place under proper security (for its use in case of emergencies).
- f) In case of online tendering, if the digital certificate issued to the authorized user of a firm is used for signing and submitting a bid, it will be considered equivalent to a no-objection certificate /power of attorney / lawful authorization to that User. The firm has to authorize a specific individual through an authorization certificate signed by all partners to use the digital certificate as per Indian Information Technology Act 2000. Unless the certificates are revoked, it will be assumed to represent adequate authority of the user to bid on behalf of the firm in the department tenders as per Information Technology Act 2000. The digital signature of this authorized user will be binding on the firm.
- g) In case of any change in the authorization, it shall be the responsibility of management / partners of the firm to inform the certifying authority about the change and to obtain the digital signatures of the new person / user on behalf of the firm / company. The procedure for application of a digital certificate, however, will remain the same for the new user.
- h) The same procedure holds true for the authorized users in a private/Public limited company. In this case, the authorization certificate will have to be signed by the directors of the company.

3 Pre-requisites for online bidding:

In order to operate on the electronic tender management system, a user s machine is required to be set up. A help file on system setup/Pre-requisite can be downloaded from the home page of the website - https://etenders.hry.nic.in. The link for downloading required java applet & DC setup are also available on the Home page of the e-tendering Portal.

4 Online Viewing of Detailed Notice Inviting Tenders:

The bidders can view the detailed N.I.T and the time schedule (Key Dates) for all the tenders floated through the single portal eProcurement system on the Home Page at https://etenders.hry.nic.in.

Download of Tender Documents:

The tender documents can be downloaded free of cost from the eProcurement portal https://etenders.hry.nic.in

6 Key Dates:

The bidders are strictly advised to follow dates and times as indicated in the online Notice Inviting Tenders. The date and time shall be binding on all bidders. All online activities are time tracked and the system enforces time locks that ensure that no activity or transaction can take place outside the start and end dates and the time of the stage as defined in the online Notice Inviting Tenders.

7 Online Payment of Tender Document Fee, eService fee, EMD fees & Bid Preparation & Submission (PQQ/ Technical & Commercial/Price Bid):

i) Online Payment of Tender Document Fee + e-Service fee:

The online payment for Tender document fee, eService Fee & EMD can be done using the secure electronic payment gateway. The Payment for Tender Document Fee and eService Fee shall be made by bidders/ Vendors online directly through Debit Cards & Internet Banking Accounts and the Payment for EMD shall be made online directly through

RTGS / NEFT. The secure electronic payments gateway is an online interface between contractors and Debit card / online payment authorization networks.

ii) PREPARATION & SUBMISSION OF ONLINE APPLICATIONS/BIDS:

Detailed Tender documents may be downloaded from e-procurement website (https://etenders.hry.nic.in) and tender mandatorily be submitted online.

Scan copy of Documents to be submitted/uploaded for Prequalification or Technical bid under online PQQ/ Technical Envelope: The required documents (refer to DNIT) shall be prepared and scanned in different file formats (in PDF /JPEG/MS WORD format such that file size is not exceed more than 10 MB) and uploaded during the on-line submission of PQQ or Technical Envelope.

FINANCIAL or Price Bid PROPOSAL shall be submitted mandatorily online under Commercial Envelope.

8. Assistance to the bidders

For any technical related queries please call at 24 x 7 Help Desk Number

0172-2700275

0120-4001 002

0120-4001 005

0120-6277 787

Technical - support-eproc(at)nic(dot)in

NOTE:- Bidders participating in online tenders shall check the validity of his/her Digital Signature Certificate before participating in the online Tenders at the portal https://etenders.hry.nic.in .

For help manual please refer to the "Home Page" of the e-Procurement website at https://etenders.hry.nic.in and click on the available link "How to…?" to download the file.

Guideline for Online Payments in e-tendering

Post registration, bidder shall proceed for bidding by using both his digital certificates (one each for encryption and signing). Bidder shall proceed to select the tender he is interested in. On the respective Department's page in the etendering portal, the Bidder would have following options to make payment for tender document & EMD:

A. Debit Card

B. Net Banking

C. RTGS/NEFT

Operative Procedures for Bidder Payments

A) Debit Card

The procedure for paying through Debit Card will be as follows.

- (i) Bidder selects Debit Card option in e-Procurement portal.
- (ii) The e-Procurement portal displays the amount and the card charges to be paid by bidder. The portal also displays the total amount to be paid by the bidder.
- (iii) Bidder clicks on "Continue" button
- (iv) The e-Procurement portal takes the bidder to Debit Card payment gateway screen.
- (v) Bidder enters card credentials and confirms payment
- (vi) The gateway verifies the credentials and confirms with "successful" or "failure" message, which is confirmed back to e-Procurement portal.
- (vii) The page is automatically routed back to e-Procurement portal
- (viii) The status of the payment is displayed as "successful" in e-Procurement portal. The e-Procurement portal also generates a receipt for all successful transactions. The bidder can take a print out of the same,
- (ix) The e-Procurement portal allows Bidder to process another payment attempt in case payments are not successful for previous attempt.

B) Net Banking

The procedure for paying through Net Banking will be as follows.

- (i) Bidder selects Net Banking option in e-Procurement portal.
- (ii) The e-Procurement portal displays the amount to be paid by bidder.
- (iii) Bidder clicks on "Continue" button
- (iv) The e-Procurement portal takes the bidder to Net Banking payment gateway screen displaying list of Banks
- (v) Bidder chooses his / her Bank
- (vi) The Net Banking gateway redirects Bidder to the Net Banking page of the selected Bank
- (vii) Bidder enters his account credentials and confirms payment
- (viii) The Bank verifies the credentials and confirms with "successful" or "failure" message to the Net Banking gateway which is confirmed back to e-Procurement portal.
- (ix) The page is automatically routed back to e-Procurement portal
- (x) The status of the payment is displayed as "successful" in e-Procurement portal.

The e-Procurement portal also generates a receipt for all successful transactions. The bidder can take a print out of the same. (xi) The e-Procurement portal allows Bidder to process another payment attempt in case payments are not successful for previous attempt.

C) RTGS/ NEFT

The bidder shall have the option to make the EMD payment via RTGS/ NEFT. Using this module, bidder would be able to pay from their existing Bank account through RTGS/NEFT. This would offer a wide reach for more than 90,000 bank branches and would enable the bidder to make the payment from almost any bank branch across India.

- I. Bidder shall log into the client e-procurement portal using user id and password as per existing process and selects the RTGS/NEFT payment option.
- ii. Upon doing so, the e-procurement portal shall generate a pre-filled challan. The challan will have all the details that is required by the bidder to make RTGS-NEFT payment.
- iii. Each challan shall therefore include the following details that will be pre-populated:
- Beneficiary account no: (unique alphanumeric code for e-tendering)
- Beneficiary IFSC Code:
- Amount:
- Beneficiary bank branch:
- Beneficiary name:

- iv. The Bidder shall be required to take a print of this challan and make the RTGS/NEFT on the basis of the details printed on the challan.
- v. The bidder would remit the funds at least T + 1 day (Transaction + One day) in advance to the last day and make the payment via RTGS / NEFT to the beneficiary account number as mentioned in the challan.
- vi. Post making the payment, the bidder would login to the e-Tendering portal and go to the payment page. On clicking the RTGS / NEFT mode of payment, there would be a link for real time validation. On clicking the same, system would do auto validation of the payment made.

D) Over-the-Counter (OTC)

This solution shall allow the bidder having account with ICICI Bank, to make the payment from any CMS enabled Branch of ICICI Bank in India. Bidders can make the payment via cash (if amount is<=₹49,999), Demand Draft or ICICI Bank Cheque.

The procedure for paying through OTC mode is as follows:

- (i) Bidder selects Over-the-Counter remittance option in e-Procurement portal.
- (ii) The e-Procurement portal displays the amount to be paid. Bidder chooses the bank account no. for refund of the amount.
- (iii) Bidder clicks on "Continue" button
- (iv) The e-Procurement portal displays the details of payment. Bidders clicks on "print _challan" and prints the OTC challan.
- (v) Bidder submits the OTC challan at the counter of any designated branch of ICICI Bank with Cash / Demand Draft / ICICI Bank Cheque (Payment in cash is allowed upto Rs. 49,999/-)
- (vi) ICICI Bank verifies the URN (format to be discussed and decided) and Amount with e- Procurement portal prior to accepting the payment
- (vii) On successful verification from e-Procurement portal, ICICI Bank accepts the payment. In case of failure, ICICI Bank shall return back the OTC challan and payment to the Bidder.
- (viii) ICICI Bank will commit the payment transaction (in case of successful verification from e- Procurement portal) and sends the Bank Transaction Number (I-Sure Reference Number) online against the URN and Amount.
- (ix) ICICI Bank will generate receipt for the payment transaction and issues the same to the Bidder.
- (x) The e-Procurement system updates the bank transaction number against the URN and Amount based on details sent by ICICI Bank online prior to generation of receipt.
- (xi) The status of payment will be displayed as "verification successful" in e-Procurement portal, when the bidder clicks on verification option in the portal
- (xii) Bidder would be required to upload the scan copy of receipt as received from ICICI Bank as part of proof in e-tender portal before submitting the tender

no.	Scenario	Do's / Don't's
no. 1	In the event of making Payment through NEFT/RTGS	 • It is the bidder's responsibility to ensure that RTGS/NEFT payments are made to the exact details as mentioned in the challan which are: 1) Beneficiary account no: <client code=""> + <random number=""></random></client> 2) Beneficiary IFSC Code: As prescribed by ICICI Bank (this shall remain same across all tenders) 3) Amount: As mentioned on the challan. It is specific for every tender/transaction 4) Beneficiary bank branch: ICICI Bank Ltd, CMS 5) Beneficiary name: As per the challan • For every tender, details in the challan are different and specific to that tender only. Bidder should not make use of a challan for making payment for another tenders' EMD • It is advised that all the bidders make payment via RTGS/NEFT at least one day in advance to the last day of tender submission as certain amount of time is required for settlement and various parites are involved. The payment may not be available for the bidder validation. In such cases bidder may not be able to submit the tender • Bidder has to make only single payment against a challan as per the amount mentioned on the challan. • Bidder must do the payment before tender validity gets expired Don't's • Bidder should not enter erroneous details while filling the NEFT/RTGS form at their bank. The following possibilities may arise: 1) Incorrect IFSC code mentioned: Transaction would be rejected and the amount would be refunded back in to the bidders account 2) Incorrect Beneficiary account number mentioned (<cli>client code> + <random number="">):-</random></cli> a) In case, the beneficiary account number mentioned is incorrect the transaction would be rejected and the bid would not be accepted. 3) Incorrect Amount mentioned: The amount would be rejected if the amount mentioned in while making the payment is incorrect. Such cases will be captured as unreconciled transactions and will be auto-refunded directly to bidder's account. In the event of any discr
		 bidder combination. Bidder must not make multiple or split payments against a particular challan. Any split payment received against the same challan will be refunded back to the bidder. Bidder would not be entitled to claim that he is deprived of participating in the tender because his funds are blocked with the division on account of incorrect payment made by the bidder

2 In the event of making Payment through OTC

Do's

• It is the bidder's responsibility to ensure that OTC payments are made to the exact details as mentioned in the challan which are:

Beneficiary account no: <client code> + <random number>

Amount: As mentioned on the challan It is specific for every tender/transaction

Beneficiary name: As per the challan

Bidder has to make only single payment against a challan as per the amount mentioned on the challan

- Bidder must do the payment before tender validity gets expired
- Bidder needs to mandatorily upload the scan copy of the payment receipt issued by ICICI Bank, in e-tender portal

Portal before submitting the Tender

Don't's

- If the bidding amount is greater than Rs 49,999, then Bidder should not make payment in cash. In this case, Bidder should pay via Demand Draft/ICICI Bank Cheque
- It is bidders's responsibility to ensure that Demand draft should be valid and should not have discrepancies such as signature not found, stale DD, mutilated, material alteration, favouring third party etc., In the event of Demand Draft returned by bidder's Bank on account of such discrepancies, ICICI Bank shall ensure that such communication is sent to the Client within 3 days from the date of rejection by the Bidder's Bank
- For every tender, details in the challan are different and specific to that tender only. Bidder should not make use of a challan for making payment for another tenders' EMD

INVITATION FOR BIDS (IFB) INTERNATIONAL COMPETITIVE BIDDING

NO.	Date

PROJECT: Procurement of Real Time Water Quality Monitoring data in Haryana at 5 locations on Rivers

- 1. Haryana State Pollution Control Board invites e-tender in two cover system from eligible bidders for Procurement of <u>Data for Real Time Water Quality Monitoring</u> in Haryana at 5 locations on Rivers and related services as specified in the bid document.
- 2. This invitation for the Bid is open to any bidder who can provide Real Time Water Quality Monitoring data at its own or along with his associate who meets the Qualifying Requirements stipulated hereunder for participation in the tender. The bidder shall furnish satisfactory evidence to establish that bidder meets the following qualifying requirements.
 - 2.1 The bidder should be able to provide Real Time Water Quality Monitoring data as listed in the scope of work who must have supplied, tested and commissioned similar RTWQMS in last five (5) years which should be in satisfactory operation.
 - 2.2 Bidder or their authorized representative should have adequate financial capability to execute the contract.

The bidder should furnish the information on all past supplies and satisfactory performance, in "Performance Statement" and minimum two (2) no. documentary evidences (client certificates in favors of bidder or manufacturers of equipment) in support of the satisfactory operation of similar RTWQMS. The bidder or its associates in India, (any authorized agency in India) should have well trained O&M personnel.

The partner shall furnish an undertaking regarding carrying out satisfactory working for RTWQMS covered in this document as per terms & conditions of the document on behalf of the bidder. This information is to be provided as per Attachment 5 of Section III.

3. A complete set of bidding documents may be downloaded by any interested eligible bidder from the portal https://etenders.hry.nic.in. The schedule of dates of submission of tender and its opening is detailed as below:

S.No.	Particulars	Date details
1.	Date of publishing of tender	06.06.2023
2.	EMD to be deposited by Bidder	Rs. 13.5 Lakh

3.	Expiry Date & Time of EMD Submission	21.06.2023 till 05.00 PM
4.	Expiry Date & Time of Bid Submission	21.06.2023 till 05.00 PM
5.	Date of opening of Technical Bid (On-line)	22.06.2023

- 4. This bidding takes simultaneous bidding procedure in two part bidding system. All the eligible and interested bidders are required to submit the Techno-commercial bid and Financial Bid simultaneously. Only the bidders whose Techno-commercial bid is found substantially responsive will be considered for financial evaluation.
- 5. Eligible Bidders must submit their bids for complete scope of work. Any bid submitted for incomplete scope shall be rejected out rightly.
- 6. All bids must be submitted on or before 21.06.2023 upto 1700 Hrs (IST). Any offer received after expiry of the time and date prescribed for receiving complete bid will not be entertained.
- 7. The bid must accompany bid security money / earnest money as indicated in table below, failing which it will not be considered.

S.No.	Particulars	Amount	In the shape of
1.	Cost of Tender Document	Rs 5000/-	Online on e-procurement portal
2.	Bid Security / Earnest Money Report	Rs. 13.5 lakh	Online on e-procurement portal

- 8. Haryana State Pollution Control Board will not be responsible for any cost(s) or expense(s) incurred by bidders in connection with the preparation or delivery of bids.
- 9. The Haryana State Pollution Control Board reserves the right to reject any or all the bids without assigning any reason whatsoever.
- 10. In the event of date being declared as a closed holiday, the date opening of bids will be the following working day at the appointed time.
- 11. Interested eligible Bidders may obtain further information directly at the Website etenders.hry.nic.in or from Haryana State Pollution Control Board for the bidding documents.

The Member Secretary, Haryana State Pollution Control Board, C-11, Sector-6, Panchkula, Haryana (India).

SCHEDULE OF TENDER

S.No.	Item	Particulars	
1.	Estimated Cost	Rs. 4.5 Crore	
2.	Earnest Money	Rs. 13.5 Lakh	
3.	Tender Document Fee & e-Service Fee (Rs.)	5000/- + 1180/-	
4.	Start Date of Bid Submission	06.06.2023	
5.	Expiry Date & Time of Bid Submission	21.06.2023 till 05.00 PM	
6.	Expiry Date & Time of Bid of EMD submission	21.06.2023 till 05.00 PM	
7.	Date of Opening ofTechnical Bids (on-line)	22.06.2023	
8.	Date and time of Opening of Financial Bids (on-line)	To be intimated later on	

List of the 5 Locations where RTWQMS will be installed

River Yamuna

- 1. Hathinikund Barrage, Yamuna
- 2. Eastern peripheral expressway, Yamuna Bridge, Sonipat
- **3.** Yamuna bridge, Shamli Road, Panipat

River Ghaggar

- **4.** Ghaggar bridge, Sector 23, Panchkula
- **5.** Ottu Barrage, Sirsa

VOLUME 1 SECTION I INSTRUCTIONS TO BIDDERS (ITB)

INSTRUCTION TO BIDDERS

1. DEFINITIONS

The terms used in this bidding document shall have the meaning defined hereunder:

- I. "The Project" or "The Works" means procurement of Real Time Water Quality Monitoring data in Haryana at 5 locations on Rivers in the state of Haryana.
- II. "The Board" means the Haryana State Pollution Control Board, having its office at C-11, sec-6, Panchkula, Haryana, India and shall include any person or persons authorized by the Board. The Board is also executing agency of the Project. "The Owner" or "The Employer" means the Board.
- III. "The Bid" means the offer or proposal of the Bidder to be submitted for the works in accordance with the stipulations set forth in this Bidding Documents.
- IV. "The Techno-commercial Bid" means the Techno-commercial part of the Bid.
- V. "The Financial Bid" means the financial part of the Bid.
- VI. "The Bidder" means either data service provider/ or his authorized Representative, who submits the Bid for the Works.
- VII. "The Contractor" or "The Contractor" means the Bidder, whose Bid for the Works has been accepted by the Board and includes his personal representatives, successors and authorized assignees.
- VIII. "The Manufacturers" means the firms, which produces the equipment to be furnished by the Contractor under the Contract with the Board.
 - IX. "The Bidding Documents" mean all the documents in Volume I and II in the bidding documents annexed thereto.
 - X. "The Contract" means the written agreement to be concluded between the Board and the Contractor and includes terms and conditions stipulated on the Bidding Documents and any other descriptions annexed thereto which form an integral part of the agreement to be provided by the Board.
 - XI. "The Equipment" means all kind of materials, machinery, components, apparatus, articles and instruments for the Project to be provided by the Contractor to the Board under the Contract.
- XII. "The Specifications" means the specifications of the Works to be performed by the Contractor in conformity with those specified in the Technical Specifications of Volume II and all other related documents in the Bidding Documents, and modifications thereof or additions thereto as may from time to time be made and approved in writing by the Board through the Consultant in case prior to the Contract and agreed upon by both the Board and the Contractor after the Contract.
 - XIII. "S/W" means the Scope of Works in **Section II of this Volume I**.
 - XIV. "The Sites" means RTWQMS in the state of Haryana.
- XV. "The Contract Price" means the price payable to the contractor under the contract for the full and proper performance of its contractual obligations.

- XVI. Unless the context of the General Conditions of Contract otherwise requires, the following terms wherever in the General Conditions of Contract shall have the meaning defined hereunder.
- XVII. Words imparting the singular shall also include the plural and vice versa where the context requires. Whether the words and phrases defined in this clause are capitalized or not in the Contract shall not affect their meaning.
- XVIII. "The Project" or "The Works" means installation & commissioning and supply of data of Real Time Water Quality Monitoring Stations (RTWQMS) at defined locations under the supervision and control of Haryana State Pollution Control Board, C-11, Sector 6, Panchkula.
 - XIX."Activity Schedule" is the priced and completed list of items of Services to be performed by the Service Provider forming part of his Bid;
 - XX. "Completion Date" means the date of completion of the Services by the Service Provider as certified by the Employer
 - XXI. "Government" means the Government of India;
 - XXII. "Local Currency" means the currency of India;
 - XXIII. "Member," in case the Service Provider consist of a joint venture of more than one entity, means any of these entities; "Members" means all these entities, and "Member in Charge" means the entity specified in the Service Contract to act on their behalf in exercising all the Service Provider' rights and obligations towards the Employer under this Contract;
 - XXIV. "Party" means HSPCB or the Service Provider, as the case may be, and "Parties" means both of them;
 - XXV. "Personnel" means persons hired by the Service Provider or by any Subcontractor as employees and assigned to the performance of the Services or any part thereof;
 - XXVI. "Service Provider" is a person or corporate body whose Bid to provide the Services has been accepted by the Board
 - XXVII. "Service Provider's Bid" means the completed bidding document submitted by the Service Provider to the Employer
 - XXVIII. "Services" means the work to be performed by the Service Provider pursuant to this Contract, as described in Appendix A; and in the Specifications and Schedule of Activities included in the Service Provider's Bid.

2. INTRODUCTION

2.1 The Haryana State Pollution Control Board intends to invite bids from eligible bidders for procurement of Real Time Water Quality Monitoring data in Haryana at 5 locations on Rivers in the state of Haryana

2.2 Scope of Works

The description of Scope of Works is set forth in Section II of this Volume 1.

2.3 Size of Bid

The whole bid is for single composite package as detailed at Section – II i.e. scope of work.

2.4 Qualifying Requirements of Bidders

- 2.4.1 This invitation for the Bid is open to any bidder who is a reputed manufacturer or authorized representatives of the manufacturer or O&M contractor of similar RTWQMS or supplying data for similar RTWQMS, who on its own or along with its associate as partner meets the qualifying requirements stipulated hereunder for participation in the tender. The bidder shall furnish satisfactory evidence to establish that bidder meets the following qualifying requirements.
- 2.4.2 The bidder/OEM should be able to provide RTWQMS as listed in the scope of work who must have supplied, tested and commissioned or having O&M contract or supplying data of similar RTWQMS in river or water body in last 3 years which should be in satisfactory operation and given as per **Attachment 8B in section III**, which should be in satisfactory operation with no adverse report for last two (2) year as on date of bid opening.

All the Equipment supplied/used/deployed under the Contract shall have their origin in the eligible countries <u>except countries sharing the land border with India.</u>

- 2.4.3 Bidder or OEM should have adequate financial capability to execute the contract. The bidder and OEM should have minimum Average Annual Turnover of Rs. 2.25 Crore (50% of bid value) and Rs. 9 crore (200% of the bid value) respectively in the last 3 financial years.
- 2.4.4 The bidder or OEM should have well trained personnel as per following details:-

S. No.	Responsibility	No. of Persons
1	Manager	1 for the entire project

A Contract Manager with 3 years' experience in Services of an equivalent nature and volume, including no less than 1 year as Manager; and having minimum 1 year experience in monitoring environmental data.

The bidder shall furnish an undertaking regarding carrying out satisfactory work of RTWQMS covered in this document as per terms & conditions of the document. This information is to be provided as per **Attachment 9 of Section III.**

- 2.4.5 The bidder should submit following documents:-
- (a) copies of original documents defining the constitution or legal status, place of registration, and principal place of business; written power of attorney of the signatory of the Bid to commit the Bidder;

- (b) total monetary value of Services performed for each of the last three years;
- (c) experience in Services of a similar nature and size for each of the last three years, and details of Services under way or contractually committed; and names and address of clients who may be contacted for further information on those contracts;
- (d) list of major items of equipment proposed to carry out the Contract; The Service Provider shall furnish proposal for timely acquisition of major items of equipments proposed by him for carrying out the contract. Instruments not be procured from country sharing land border with India.
- (e) The documents for respective specifications of such equipment and its country of origin as per **Attachment 4 (Section III)**.
- (f) authority to the Employer to seek references from the Bidder's bankers;
- (g) information regarding any litigation, current or during the last 5 years, in which the Bidder is involved, the parties concerned, and disputed amount; and
- 2.4.6 A consistent history of litigation or arbitration awards against the bidder or any partner may result in disqualification.

2.5 Bidding Procedure

- (1) The complete bidding process will be On-line.
- (2) All bids shall be submitted simultaneously by the designated date and at the place specified in Sub-clause 7.2 in this instruction.
- (3) The bidder must quote for complete scope of work in package. In case the bidder does not quote for complete scope of work, the bid shall be rejected at Techno-commercial evaluation stage.
- (4) The bidder shall bear all costs associated with the preparation and delivery of its bid, and purchaser will in no case be responsible or liable for those costs.

2.6 Conditions and eligibility for MSEs and MEs

As per Haryana State Public procurement Policy for MSMEs-2016 dated 20.10.2016 and 13.08.2021, following will be the eligibility criteria for MSEs and MEs:-

A. Concessions/ benefits to Micro & Small Enterprises (MSEs):-

Sr. No.	Area as part of Qualifying requirements	Concessions/ benefits allowed to MSEs	Eligibility
i.	Tender Fee	Exemption on the payment of Tender Fee subject to fulfillment of conditions as per eligibility	Manufacturing Micro Et Small Enterprise (MSEs) (including Khadi Et villac Industries/ Units) who have filed S Certificate/ EM Part-11/Udyog

ii.	Earnest Money Deposit (EMD) Performance Security	Exemption on the payment of Earnest Money Deposit (EMD) subject to fulfillment of conditions as per eligibility 90% concession on Performance Security as applicable to other	Aadhaar Memorandum (UAM)/Udyam Registration in Haryana (applicable and valid on that date as per Govt. Instructions) in respect of the quoted items, participate directly tender and not through any intermediaries (their dealers/ agents/ distributors), will not subcontract to any other firm and to carry the entire
		Haryana based firms subject to fulfillment of conditions as per eligibility	manufacturing at their enterprise. Concerned MSE will be required to submit
iv.	Turnover	a. Micro Enterprises: Concession of 80% on Turnover condition imposed as qualifying criteria b. Small Enterprises: Concession of 70% on Turnover condition imposed as qualifying criteria	the copy of SSI Certificate/EM Part-IIIUdy(Aadhaar Memorandum (UAM)/ Udyam Registration in Haryana (Applicable and valid on that date as per Govt. Instructions) in respect of its category of Micro/ Small issued to the firm by the Industries Department
V.	Past Performance Et Experience	Exempted in respect of Past Performance a Experience as part of Qualifying Requirements of the tender subject to fulfillment of conditions as per eligibility	Manufacturing Micro SmallEnterprises (MSEs) (including Khadi & village Industries/Units) who have filed SSI Certificate/EM Part-11/Udyog Aadhaar Memorandum (UAM)/Udyam Registration in Haryana (Applicable and valid on that
vi.	Purchase Preference	Upto 50% of the total tendered quantity provided quoting price within band of L-1+15% by bringing down their price to L-1 and subject to condition that it agrees to fulfillment of other terms a conditions of the tender and further subject to fulfillment of conditions as per eligibility	date as per Govt. Instructions) in Haryana and further: Those MSEs have Quality Certification of ISI/ISO/AgMark/ Quality Mark issued from competent authority in State or Central Government in respect of the items/ goods mentioned in the tender OR/AND Those who are registered with DGSEtD/ NSIC/GOI Department/ StateGovt. Department/ GOI PSUs/State Govt. PSUs in respect of the item/goods mentioned in the tender. The firm will be required to submit the detailed information in respect of above through an affidavit as per the format enclosed as Annexure-I

B. Concessions/ benefits to Medium Enterprises (MEs):-

Sr. No.	Area as part of Qualifying requirements	Concessions/ benefits allowed to Medium Enterprises	Eligibility
i.	Past Performance & Experience	Exemption on Qualifying Requirement of Past Performance & Experience as part of Qualifying Requirements of the tender subject to fulfillment of conditions as per eligibility.	that have filed 551 Certificate/EM Part-II/Udyog Aadhaar Memorandum (UAM)/Udyam Registration in Haryana (Applicable and valid on that date as per Govt. Instructions) for quoted items in Haryana, participate directly in tender and not through any
ii.	Purchase Preference	Upto 10% of the total tendered quantity provided quoting price within band of L-1+15% by bringing down their price to L-1 and subject to condition that it agrees to fulfillment of other terms and conditions of the tender and further subject to fulfillment of conditions as per eligibility	intermediaries (their dealers/ agents/ distributors), and will not subcontract to any other firm and to carry the entire manufacturing at their enterprise. This concession will be applicable only for one year to newly registered Medium Enterprises or Medium Enterprises of State who are not eligible in State Public Procurement due to eligibility criteria of past performance Et Experience. The firm will be required to submit the detailed information in respect of above through an affidavit as per the format enclosed as Annexure-II

- 1. The apportionment/ distribution of tendered quantity after negotiations based on the existing instructions and Purchase Preference allowed to MSMEs as above may have different scenarios. The general guidelines for the apportionment of tendered quantity to firms other than MSMEs, MSEs & MEs will be as under:-
- i. Purchase Preference to MSMEs will not be applicable if the tendered quantity is only one.
- ii. Purchase Preference for Medium Enterprises (MEs) will only be allowed on the quantities in multiples of 10 say 10, 20, 30 and so on. The quantity less than 10 or in between multiple of 10, 20, 30 will not be considered for Purchase Preference to MEs.
- iii. Negotiations will be held only with L1+5% firms. MSMEs as per above instructions within the price range of L1 +15% will be counter offered to match the finally arrived L1 rate. In case, MSMEs within L1+15% range refuse to match the finally arrived L1 rate than the entire 60% (50% for MSEs and 10% for MEs) of purchase preference will be transferred to L1 +5% category firms.
- iv. In case, no Micro a Small Enterprises (MSEs) and Medium Enterprises (MEs) as per the eligibility criteria specified in the above instructions are within L1+15% range, the entire 100% tendered quantity will be distributed as per the existing guidelines.

- v. In case, there are no Micro a Small Enterprises (MSEs) within L1+15% range, the Purchase Preference Quota of 50% of MSEs will stand transferred to open category making it from 40% to 90%.
- vi. In case there are no Medium Enterprises (MEs) within L1+15% range, the Purchase Preference Quota of 10% of MEs will stand transferred to open category making it from 40% to 50%.
- vii. In case, no MSMEs is within L1 +5% range and there is one MSE Et one ME in L1+15% range and further agree to match the arrived L1 rate, the quantity distribution will be upto 40% for firm other then MSME, upto 50% for MSE and upto 10% for ME and so on.
- viii. In case, there are MSMEs (both or either MSEs and MEs) within L1+5% range and there are MSEs & MEs in L1+15% range. Negotiations will be carried out with all firms within L1 +5% as per the existing guidelines to arrive at finally arrived L1 rate. The finally arrived firm can be any other firm /MSE/ME or any/ more of these other firm/MSE/ME matches the finally arrived price; in such a situation, apportionment will be done as per the existing instructions of ratio of 70:30 or 50:25:25 so on. Thereafter, offer will be given to MSE and MEs within L+15% range to match the finally arrived L1 rate and if they agree to match the arrived L1 rate, the apportionment of quantity will have many scenarios for the distribution of tendered quantities. Some of the scenarios and sub-scenarios of quantity apportionment may be as per Annexure- 111 enclosed with the notification. However, there can be many more scenarios depending upon the number of MSMEs within price range of L1 +5% and L1+15%
- 2. These instructions will replace all the instructions related to concessions/benefits to the Haryana based Micro, Small Et Medium Industrial Enterprises in the State Public Procurement as detailed in Para-1 of this order.

3. BIDDING DOCUMENTS

3.1 Issue of Documents

Complete set of bidding document can be downloaded from the website https://etenders.hry.nic.in. The Tender Documents Fees has to be paid online through payment gateway during the "Downloading of Tender Document & Payment of Tender Document fees" stage and Earnest Money Deposit has to be deposited as per guidelines for online payments in e-tendering given in Vol I of this document.

Bidding Documents are not transferable.

3.2 Confidentiality of Documents

All recipients of the Bidding Documents regardless of whether the Bid is submitted or not, shall treat the details of the documents as private and confidential.

3.3 Check of the Bidding Documents

Upon receipt of the Bidding Documents, the Bidder shall check the number of pages and drawings and notify the Board of any missing or duplicate pages and drawings or of any figures or words, which may be indistinct or ambiguous.

No claim will be admitted as result of the Bidder's failure to comply with the foregoing. The address for the contact is specified in Sub- clause 3.5 of this Instruction.

3.4 Contents of Bidding Documents

(1) The Bidding Documents include:

Volume I Invitation for Bids

SECTION I	Instruction to bidders
SECTION II	Scope of works

SECTION III Form of techno-commercial bid

SECTION IV Form of financial bid

SECTION V General conditions of contract

Volume II

Technical Specifications

1. Specifications for proposed work/data supply for RTWQMS

Bidders must acquaint themselves with all the Bidding Documents embodied in Volume I and Volume II. In order to familiarize with the Works, the Bidders should ascertain all particulars regarding the location and site conditions at their own expenses. No plea attributed to lack of information or insufficient information will be entertained at any time.

The Board shall reserve the right and privilege to settle the affairs in case any doubt may occur concerning the Bidding Documents.

3.5 Clarification of Bidding Documents

If a prospective Bidder has any doubt as to the meaning of any part of the Bidding Documents, he may notify the Board for supplementary information and explanation in writing in compliance with Form of Questionnaire of **Attachment 1** in Section III at the following address at least **three (3) days** before the closing date of the bid.

Member Secretary
Haryana State Pollution Control Board,
C-11, sec-6, Panchkula, Haryana, (India)

3.6 Amendment of Bidding Documents

- (1) At any time prior to the deadline for submission of the Bid, the Board, for any reason, whether at its own initiative or in response to a clarification requested by a prospective Bidder, may modify the Bidding Documents by amendment.
- (2) In order to allow prospective Bidders reasonable time in which to take amendment into account in preparing their Bids, the Board at its discretion may extend the deadline for submission of the Bid.

4. PREPARATION AND SUBMISSION OF BID

4.1 Language

The Bid to be prepared by the Bidders, as well as all correspondence and documents relating to the Bid exchanged by the Bidder and the Board or the Consultant shall be written in English. Failure to comply with this may disqualify a bid.

4.2 One Bid per Bidder

Each Bidder shall submit one Bid only.

4.3 Bid Security / Earnest Money

- (1) The Bidder shall furnish, as part of its Bid, his Bid Security in the Indian Rupees @ 13.5 Lakh (Thirteen Lakh Fifty Thousand only) through RTGS/NEFT, online on the website https://haryanaprocurement.gov.in.
- (2) Any Bid not secured by the Bid Security will be rejected by the Board as non-responsive pursuant to Sub-clause 8.4. Unsuccessful Bidder's Bid Security will be discharged or returned without any interest as promptly as possible. The successful Bidder's Bid Security will be discharged upon the Bidder signing the Contract pursuant to Subclause 13.3 in this instruction and furnishing the Performance Security pursuant to Clause 14 in this instruction.
- (3) The Bid Security may be forfeited:
 - a. If a Bidder withdraws it's Bid during the period of Bid validity specified in Sub-clause 4.4 hereunder;
 - b. If a bidder refuses to accept the arithmetical corrections made according to ITB (Instructions to the Bidder) Clause No. 11;
 - c. In case of a successful Bidder, if the Bidder fails to sign the Contract in accordance with Sub-clause 13.3 in this Instructions and furnish Performance Security in accordance with Clause 14

in this Instructions;

- d. In case bidder refuses to withdraw, without any cost to the Owner, those deviations, which the bidder did not state in the Deviation Schedules.
- (4) No interest will be payable by the Board on the above EMD.

4.4 Validity of Bid

The bid shall remain valid and binding on the Bidder for 120 days from the last date for submission of the Bid. Bid validity for a shorter period shall be rejected by the Board as non-responsive.

In exceptional circumstances, the Board may in writing, solicit the Bidder's consent to an extension of the period of the Bid validity. If the Bidder agrees to the request for extension, the Bid Security shall also be extended for an equivalent period of time.

Any Bidder may refuse to extend the validity of his Bid without forfeiting his Bid Security, but the Bid will not be considered.

Bidders granting the requests for extension of the Bid validity will not be required or permitted to modify their Bids.

4.5 Modification and Withdrawal of Bid

- a) The Bidder may modify or withdraw its Bid after the Bid's submission; provided that written notice of the modification or withdrawal is received by the Board prior to the deadline prescribed for submission of Bids as per provisions of e-tender.
- b) The bidder's modification or withdrawal notice shall be prepared and uploaded on the tender site https://etenders.hry.nic.in in accordance with the provisions of clause 5 & 6 for Technocommercial and financial bid respectively of this section. A withdrawal notice may also be sent on line on the tender site but must be followed by a signed confirmation letter.
- c) No Bid shall be allowed to be modified subsequent to the deadline for submission of Bids.
- d) No bid shall be allowed to be withdrawn in the interval between the deadline for submission of Bids and the expiration of the period of bid validity specified in the clause 4.4 above. Withdrawal during this period may result in the forfeiture of the bid security pursuant to clause 4.3 (3) (a).

4.6 Rejection of Bid

Failure by the Bidder to comply with the provisions of these Instructions to Bidders or any part of the Bidding Documents may result in rejection of the Bid and forfeiture of the Bid Security.

The Board reserves the right to accept or reject any or all Bids or to amend the Bidding process at any time prior to award of the Contract without thereby incurring any liability to the affected Bidder or Bidders or any obligation to inform the affected Bidder or Bidders of the grounds for the Board's action.

The Board also reserves to itself the right of accepting the whole or any part of the Bid and the Bidder shall be bound to perform the same at the rate quoted.

4.7 Contacting the Board

Except for responses to request for clarification of the Bid by the Board, the Bidder shall not contact the Board for any matter related to this Bid from the time of submission of the Bid until the Contract is awarded.

Any efforts by the Bidder to influence the Board in his decision in respect of evaluation of the Bid or award of the Contract shall result in the rejection of the Bid and forfeiture of the Bid security.

4.8 Site visit

The Bidder, at the Bidder's own responsibility and risk, is encouraged to visit and examine the Site of required Services and its surroundings and obtain all information that may be necessary for preparing the Bid and entering into a contract for the Services. The costs of visiting the Site shall be at the Bidder's own expense.

5. PREPARATION OF TECHNO-COMMERCIAL BID

- 5.1 The Bidder shall upload the scanned copy of all documents on the etender site, further technical bid must not include any financial information, if found so the bidder will be disqualified.
- 5.2 Following documents shall be prepared and uploaded:-
- 1) Authorization letter authorizing the signatory of the Bid to commit the Bidder.
- 2) Attachments in support of fulfilling the qualifying requirements as per Clause No. 2.5 for the quoted packages (Attachments 8A & 8B of Section-III).
- 3) Copy of certificate of local branch, sales, residential and

- representative office(s) of the Bidder in India as per certificate from pursuant to Attachment 2 of Section III.
- 4) Certificate of carrying out work by the Partner (Attachment 5 of Section III).
- 5) Pre-requisite for installation of equipment offered (Attachment 10 of Section III).

6. PREPARATION OF FINANCIAL BID

6.1 Bidder shall prepare financial bid as per BOQ format uploaded on e-tender website.

6.2 Summary of Bid Price

Summary of Bid Price shall be prepared and submitted in accordance with the **Attachment 1 in Section IV** and given in BOQ format uploaded on Haryana e-tender portal.

6.3 Currencies of Bid:

The prices shall be quoted by the bidder separately in INR only which the bidder proposes to supply.

7. COMPLETION AND SUBMISSION OF BID

7.1 Completion of Bids

7.1.1 Techno-commercial Bid

(1) The Techno-commercial Bid shall not contain any information regarding Bid Prices and other financial matters except the Bid Security pursuant Clause 4.3 in this instruction.

7.1.2 Financial Bid

The Bidder shall upload the complete financial bid on the tender site https://etenders.hry.nic.in.

7.2 Submission of Bid

All the documents for the Techno-commercial Bid and Financial Bid shall be uploaded on the tender site https://etenders.hry.nic.in at the time & Date designated by the Board as follows:

Time By 1700 hrs. on Date 21.06.2023

The Bids received after the specified time and date here above for whatever reason shall be declared "late" and rejected and returned unopened to the bidder.

8. OPENING AND EVALUATION OF TECHNO-COMMERCIAL BID

8.1 Opening of Technical Bid

The Technical Bid will be opened on-line in the office of the HSPCB on the dated at 22.06.2023 at HSPCB, Panchkula the place specified in Sub-Clause 7.2 here above. Bidders or their representatives, if they wish may attend the opening.

During opening of the Techno-commercial Bid, the Bidder's name, the presence or absence of necessary envelopes, withdrawals of the Bid and such other details as the Board at their discretion may consider appropriate will be announced and recorded.

All the Bidders or their representatives present shall sign a format evidencing their attendance.

8.2 Confidentiality of the Process

Information relating to the examination, clarification, evaluation and comparison of Bids and recommendations for the award of the contract shall not be disclosed to bidders or any other person not officially concerned with such process. Any effort by a bidder to influence the Board's processing of Bids are award decisions may result in the rejection of the Bidder's Bid. The request for clarification and response shall be writing but no change in the price or substance of the bid shall be sought, offered or permitted except as required to confirm the correction of arithmetic errors discovered by the Board in the evaluation of the bids in accordance with the clause 11 of these instructions.

8.3 Clarification of Techno-commercial Bids

To assist the Techno-commercial examination and evaluation of bids, the Board may, at its discretion ask the bidder for a clarification of its Techno-commercial bid. If needed a pre bid meeting may be called. All responses to request for clarification shall be in writing, and no change in the price bid shall be sought, offered or permitted.

8.4 Preliminary Examination

The Board will examine the Techno-commercial Bids to determine whether they are complete, whether the documents have been properly signed and whether the Techno-commercial Bids are generally in order. Any Techno-commercial Bid found to be non-responsive for any reason i.e. non-conformity of bid security, or not meeting the eligibility criteria and/ or qualifying requirements pursuance to **clause 2.4 & 2.5 of ITB** etc. will be rejected by the Board. No further Techno- commercial evaluation shall be carried out for such bidders.

Prior to detailed evaluation of Techno-commercial bids, pursuant to clause

8.5, the Board will determine the substantial responsiveness of each Bid to the Bidding Documents including acceptable quality of goods offered pursuant to **clause 2.4 & 2.5**. A substantially responsive Bid is one, which conforms to all terms and conditions of the Bidding Documents without material deviations, objections, conditionality or reservations. A material deviation, objection, conditionality or reservation is one (i) that affects in any substantial way the scope, quality or performance of the contract; (ii) that limits in any substantial way, inconsistent with bidding documents, the Owner's right or the successful Bidder's obligations under the Contract; or (iii) whose rectification would unfairly affect the competitive position of other Bidder's who are presenting substantially responsive bids.

No deviation, whatsoever, is permitted by the Owner to the provisions relating to the following clauses (important Conditions):

- (a) Bid security (ITB Clause 4.3)
- (b) Resolution of Disputes (G.C.C clause 36),
- (c) Applicable law (G.C.C clause 41),
- (d) Taxes & duties (G.C.C Clause 37),
- (e) Performance security (ITB Clause 14 & GCC Cl.27),
- (f) Force Majeure (G.C.C Clause 35).

A bid with deviation to any of the above clauses (important Conditions) will be liable to be rejected.

The Owner's determination of bid's responsiveness is to be based on the contents of the bid itself without recourse to extrinsic evidence. If a bid is not substantially responsive, it will be rejected by the Owner, and may not subsequently be made responsive by the Bidder by correction of the non-conformity.

8.5 Evaluation of Techno-commercial Bid

- (1) The Board will determine the responsive Techno-commercial Bids for the invitation of opening of Financial Bid if the Techno- commercial Bid meets technical specification and any other information, which they consider relevant to his offer.
- (2) If a Bidder is found not substantially responsive to the technical requirement, the Techno-commercial Bid will be rejected and the subsequent information as to opening of the Financial Bid will not be notified.
- (3) If the Techno-commercial clarifications are required by the Board to any part of the Techno-commercial Bids, the Bidders will be requested to clarify the same in writing.

8.6 Evaluation Criteria of Techno-commercial Bid

The Bidder who fulfills the requirements specified under Qualification

Requirement (Clause 2.4) will be short listed. Under the Qualification Requirement a minimum threshold limit has been set for each parameter like technical experience and financial strength. Bidders not meeting the minimum threshold limit in any of these parameters will not be short-listed.

The detailed techno-commercial evaluation to be carried out shall be restricted to these short listed Bidders only.

9.0 NOTIFICATION OF SUCCESSFUL TECHNO-COMMERCIAL BID

After completing the techno-commercial evaluation of the Techno-commercial Bid first, the Board will notify in writing the pre-qualified and techno-commercially responsive Bidders, of the date and venue for the opening of the Financial Bid.

10. OPENING OF FINANCIAL BID

Financial bid will be opened after technical evaluation of all the bidders and declaring the qualified bidders. The system shall automatically calculate the prices and rank the bidders as L1, L2 and so on.

11. EXAMINATION OF FINANCIAL BID

After opening of the Financial Bid, the Board will examine them to determine whether they are complete.

The Financial Bid which is incomplete or conditional will be rejected.

12. EVALUATION AND COMPARISON OF FINANCIAL BID

12.1 Evaluation Procedure

The Board will evaluate the Bid previously determined to be Technocommercially responsive pursuant to clause 8.6. The Board reserves the right to reject any bid or bids received at its discretion without assigning any reason whatsoever.

(In case, the two or more bidders have the same lowest financial quote, the Board reserves the right to award the work to the agency as deemed fit by the Board to carry out the said work. The decision of the Board shall be final and cannot be challenged.)

12.2 Clarification on Financial Bid

For the purpose of examination, evaluation and comparison of the Financial Bid, the Board may at his discretion request the Bidder in writing to clarify his Financial Bid, but no change in the Bid Price or substance of the Bid will be sought, offered or permitted.

12.3 Cost Compensation for deviations

Deviations specifically declared by the bidders in respective Deviation Schedule (Attachment 11 of Technical Bid, Section – III) only will be taken into account for the purpose of evaluation.

In case of any of these deviations are not acceptable to the Owner, the Bid shall be rejected.

In case any of the deviations are acceptable to the Owner, the Owner will make its own assessment of the cost of these deviations and consider it for evaluation for the purpose of ensuring fair comparison of bids.

The Bidder shall understand that decision of the Board will be binding in regards of anything not specifically mentioned in the technical specification.

Bidders may note that all deviations / variations and additional conditions etc. found elsewhere in the bid other than those stated in the Deviation Schedules, save those pertaining to any rebates, shall not be given effect to in evaluation and it will be assumed that the bidder complies to all the conditions of Bidding Documents. In case bidder refuses to withdraw, without any cost of the Owner, those deviations, which the bidder did not state in the Deviation Schedules, the bid shall be rejected and the bid security of the bidder may be forfeited.

Note: The Employer reserves the right to accept or reject any variation, deviation, or alternative offer. Variations, deviations, and alternative offers and other factors, which are in excess of the requirements of the bidding documents or otherwise result in unsolicited benefits for the Employer will not be taken into account in Bid evaluation.

13. AWARD OF CONTRACT

13.1 Award of Contract to Successful Bidder

The Board will award the Contract to successful Bidder:

- 1. Whose Bid will be determined to be substantially responsive to this Bidding document and who will be determined by the Board, to be qualified technically, financially and otherwise in respect of such other capabilities, as the Board may be deem necessary and appropriate to satisfactory performance of the Contract and
- 2. Whose Bid will be determined to be the lowest financial quote for 5 locations, responsive Bid and is determined to be qualified to satisfactorily perform the contract. The Board reserves the right to accept or reject any Bid, and to cancel the bidding process and reject all bids, at any time prior to the award of Contract, without thereby incurring any liability to the affected Bidder or bidders or any

obligation to inform the affected Bidder or bidders of the grounds for the Employer's action.

13.2 Notification to Award

After technical and financial evaluation of all the bidders, L1 bidder will be notified and issued with the Letter of Award. L1 will be decided by the High Power Purchase Committee of the Govt. of Haryana as per procedures laid. The notification of award will constitute the formation of the Contract. Upon the successful Bidder's furnishing of the Performance Security pursuant to Clause 14 the Board will promptly notify each unsuccessful Bidder and will discharge their Bid Security pursuant to Sub-Clause 4.3. The notification of award shall constitute a binding contract until a formal contract is prepared and executed.

The notification of award will constitute the formation of the Contract.

13.3 Signing of Contract

Within seven (07) days of the receipt of notification of award from the Board, the successful Bidder shall sign the Contract.

The Contract shall take the form of General Condition attached to Section V and such modifications as may be necessary.

The Bidder shall prepare at his own cost one (1) original and three (3) copies of the Contract including the Contract Form attached to the GCC Conditions of Contract (**Attachment 2 of Section V**) for distribution to the parties concerned.

14. PERFORMANCE SECURITY

Within seven (07) days of notification of award from the Board, the successful Bidder shall furnish the Performance Security in the form of bank guarantee issued by a reputable bank (as per enclosed list of Attachment – 14) having license to do business in India in accordance with Attachment 2 "Performance Security Form" provided in Special Conditions Contract for an amount equivalent to 10% (ten percent) of the Contract Price, for one year after successful operation of system.

Failure of the successful Bidder to comply with the requirement of Subclause 13.3 or Clause 14 in these instructions shall constitute sufficient grounds for the annulment of the award and forfeiture of the Bid Security in which event the Board may make the award to the second high ranked Bidder or call for new Bids.

15. EXPENSE OF BID

Under no circumstances will the Board be liable to the Bidder for any expenses, losses or damages whatever incurred in the Bid including but not limited to expenses, losses or damages associated with preparation of

the Bid, visits to the Sites and all matters in connection with the Contract negotiations and signing regardless of the conduct or outcome of the bidding process.

16. RESPONSIBILITY FOR INFORMATION SUPPLIED

Prior to the final time and date for submission of the Bids, no representation, communication, explanation or statement, verbal or written, made to the Bidder or anyone else by the Bidder or any of their employees or authorized representatives other than as may be set out in amendment issued in accordance with Sub-clause 3.6 in this Instructions shall bind the Bidder in the exercise of their powers and duties under the Contract.

The information given in the Bidding Documents is the best in the possession of the Board, but the Board does not hold himself responsible for its accuracy.

17. Advance Payment and Security

The Employer will provide a 25% Advance Payment on the Contract Price against Bank guarantee of same amount and all advance amount to be adjusted against quarterly bills submitted by the contractor within 2 years.

VOLUME - I SECTION II SCOPE OF WORKS

1.0 DETAILS OF PROJECT STRUCTURE

The HSPCB intends to purchase data for 5 RTWQMS in Haryana on decided locations and invite bidders to participate in the e-tender.

(a) Successful Bidder would be awarded the project/work for a period of 5 years from the date of it's commissioning.

HSPCB would obtain permission for installation of RTWQMS in the identified locations to the Successful Bidder.

2.0 SCOPE OF WORK

The Scope of Works under the package shall include the supply of the data of RTWQMS for a period of five (5) years from the date of commissioning of the station, which can be extended at the mutually agreed rates and terms and conditions.

Other services involved with performance of the Works are specified in General and Special Conditions of Contract of bid document.

3.0 MINIMUM TECHNICAL SPECIFICATIONS

The minimum technical specification requirements for RTWQMS to be installed are given in Volume – II (Technical Specifications) of bid document. However, the actual technical proposal can have higher or better technical performance parameters and the minimum specifications proposed should not be taken as a constraint on the upper side. The technical specifications given in Volume – II (Technical Specifications) of bid documents are descriptive and Selection Committee can consider technical proposals having similar specifications.

4.0 DESIRED OUTPUT FOR RTWQMS DATA

The Contractor's responsibilities shall include without limitations the following works to be carried out on the Real Time Water Quality Monitoring Stations installed under this Contract:

- a) Display data for operation of the equipment as specified in Volume II
 i) Provide access to the owner to the RTWQMS and its data at all reasonable times and as when required.
 - ii) Provide the operational data required to all competent authorities including Government of India or concerned State Governments.
 - iii) Online transfer of data to HSPCB/CPCB website.
- b) The Contractor shall ensure accuracy of the RTWQMS data.

5. HANDING OVER OF DATA OF RTWQMS

On expiry/closure/termination of the Contract Agreement, data of RTWQMS shall be handed over to Board.

6. RELOCATION OF RTWQMS

During contract period, if Board intends to shift RTWQMS from one location of the city to another location, due to some reason – functional or otherwise, Bidder shall shift the RTWQMS for which cost of shifting including dismantling, loading & transportation, reinstallation at new location and construction of foundation will be made by the Board at a mutual agreed cost.

7. PENALTIES

For a failure of Data supply:

A penalty will be charged by HSPCB @ Rs. 1,000/- (one thousand) per day after a grace period of three (3) continuous non- working days. The grace period of three (3) continuous non-working days shall be given only once per quarter (3 months). The data to be maintained as per **Annexure 01** of Section II of Volume I.

Failure due to Force Majeure conditions shall not be considered for levy of penalty.

Total penalty per year during contract period on account of above conditions shall be limited to 30% of total charges for one year. Failing which defective/ malfunctioning system has to be replaced.

In case penalty in the year exceeds 30% as above, the Contractor shall be required to replace the defective RTWQMS with new ones at his own cost, failing which the HSPCB shall have the right to terminate the contract.

8. SCHEDULE

Contractor shall complete all activities covered in the scope of work up to installation & commissioning and supply of data of RTWQMS within 120 days from date of issuance of Letter of Award.

The Contractor shall supply data of RTWQMS for a period of five (5) years from the date of commissioning of the RTWQMS, which can be extended at the mutually agreed rates and terms and conditions.

The contract shall be executed by the Member Secretary or officer authorized for the Haryana State Pollution Control Board. The term and condition shall be governed as per the tender document. The Member Secretary of HSPCB or any person authorized by him shall be the ultimate consignee.

Annexure 01 of Section II

Name of Station*	Name of non – functional system	Total period of continuous non-functioning (days)	

Total Penalty Amount (`):

- * (To be prepared & submitted separately for each station)
- ** Grace period of 7 days is applicable only once per quarter

VOLUME 1

SECTION III

FORMS OF TECHNO-COMMERCIAL BID CONTENTS

Attachment 1 (Section III)

<Letterhead of the Bidder>

FORM OF QUESTIONNAIRE

HARYANA STATE POLLUTION CONTROL BOARD PROJECT BIDDING DOCUMENTS FOR SUPPLY OF DATA OF REAL TIME WATER QUALITY MONITORING STATIONS (RTWQMS) IN STATE OF HARYANA

Date:

To,

The Member Secretary, Haryana State Pollution Control Board, C-11, sec-6, Panchkula, Haryana (India)

From: Name of Bidder

Address

Name of Representative

Position Fax No. Email id. Signature

\sim		
()ı	uesti	nn

Brief report of experience and capabilities and company profile.

Attachment 2 (Section III)

<Letterhead of the Bidder>

CERTIFICATE OF PARTNER OF THE BIDDER IN INDIA

To,

The Member Secretary, Haryana State Pollution Control Board, C-11, sec-6, Panchkula, Haryana (India)

Subject :- Certificate of Existence of Local Branch, Sales Residential and Representative Office(s) in India

- 1. Name of Office (s):
- 2. Address

Tel. No. : Fax No. : Telex No. :

- Email id :
- 3. Status of Office(s):
- 4. Date of Establishment of Office (s):
- 5. Name & Address of Residential Representative:
- 6. Total No. of years of association with OEM (Name of the manufacturer):
- 7. Total Manpower:
- 8. Total No. of trained Service Engineer:
- 9. Present No. of offices in India (Name the locations & address):
- 10. Total Turnover in last 3 years:
- 11. Major job in Hand:

12. Experience in O&M contract:

SI. No.	Name of Client and Address, Phone No.etc.	Description of Contract (Brief scope of contract)	Year of Placement of Order	Present Status

Signature		
Name:		
Designation:		
Seal:		

Attachment 3 (Section III)

FORM OF LETTER OF AUTHORITY

To,

The Member Secretary, Haryana State Pollution Control Board, C-11, sec-6, Panchkula, Haryana (India)

Name of Manufacturer

Subject:- Letter of Authority from Manufacturer

Dear Sirs,

We, (Name of Manufacturer), a manufacturer duly organized and existing under the law of (Country Name) with its principal office of business as (Address) hereby make, constitute and appoint (name of Bidder), a company duly organized and existing under the laws of (Country Name) with its principal office of business at (Address) to be our true and lawful attorney in fact to do the following sets and deeds:

To present and bind us in the for Supply and O&M of Real Time Water Quality Monitoring Stations (RTWQMS) for Haryana State Pollution Control Board in the State of Haryana, regarding the supply and installation of the following equipment proposed in the bid which we manufacture or produce.

Item No.	Item No. Name of Equipment		

We, as a manufacturer bind ourselves as co-worker of the bid and are jointly and severally responsible for the compliance of the said bid and once (Name of Bidder) has been selected as a successful bidder, we shall manufacture, delivery and install the equipment in accordance with the terms and conditions of contract with (Name of Bidder) and the Haryana State Pollution Control Board.

We hereby give and grant to the said (Name of Bidder) full power and authority to do and perform all and every act and thing whatsoever, requisite necessary and proper to be done in the premises, as fully, to all intents and purposes as we might or could do with full power of submission and renovation hereby ratifying and conforming all that (Name of Bidder) or its duly authorized representative shall lawfully do or cause to do done by virtue hereof.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, we have her	reto signed t	his document o	n	
202				
ACCEPTED ON	- ,202			
NAME OF BIDDER MANUFACTURER		NAME	OF	ISSUING
(Name of duly authorized representative to sign and	signature)	(Name of representati signature)	ve to	
(Rank of position and department) (R	ank of position	 n and de	 partment)

Attachment 3A (Section III)

<Letterhead of the Manufacturer>

	FORM OF CERTIFICATE OF SUPPLY OF SPARES AND CONSUMABLES BY
	MANUFACTURER
Date	<u>.</u>

To,

The Member Secretary, Haryana State Pollution Control Board, C-11, sec-6, Panchkula, Haryana (India)

Sub:- Certificate of Supply of Consumables and Spare Parts by Manufacturer

This is to certify that we (Name of Manufacturer) shall supply the consumables and spare parts of the equipment mentioned below during O&M period under the contract (contract detail) to the contractor (Name of the contractor)/ Owner.

It is hereby guaranteed that we shall maintain stocks of consumables and spare parts for the following equipment for a period of Eight (8) years after the commissioning of the equipment in India.

Item No.	Name of Equipment	Name of Manufacturer	

Signature:	
Name of Person:	
Position:	
Name of Manufacturer:	
Office Seal of Manufacturer:	
Legal Address of Manufactur	rer

Attachment 4 (Section III)

<Letterhead of the Manufacturer> FORM OF CERTIFICATE OF COUNTRY OF ORIGIN

To,

The Member Secretary, Haryana State Pollution Control Board, C-11, sec-6, Panchkula, Haryana (India)

Name of Manufacturer

Sub:- Certificate of Country of Origin

We, (Name of Manufacturer), hereby certify that our equipment for procurement and installation of equipment for Haryana State Pollution Control Board in the State of Haryana, India is to be manufactured in the country mentioned below:

Item No.	Name of Equipment	Country of Origin

Signature
Name of Person:
Title:
Name of Manufacturer:
Legal Address:

Attachment 5 (Section III)

<Letterhead of the Partner>

FORM OF CERTIFICATE OF CARRYING OUT WORK of RTWQMS BY THE PARTNER IN INDIA

Date:

To:

The Member Secretary, Haryana State Pollution Control Board, C-11, sec-6, Panchkula, Haryana (India)

Sub:- Certificate of carrying out work of RTWQMS by the partner in India.

This is to certify that we <Name of Partner> hereby agree to carry out day to day work of RTWQMS installed and commissioned by <Name of the main bidder> for minimum of five years from the date of installation & commissioning of the RTWQMS at the rates quoted by <Name of the main bidder> against this tender, strictly in accordance with terms & conditions contained in this bid document.

Signature:

Name of Person:

Position:

Name of Partner:

Name Seal of Partner:

Legal Address of Partner in India:

Counter-signed by main bidder

Name of Person:

Position:

Name of the Bidder:

Office Seal of Bidder:

Legal Address of Bidder:

Attachment 6 (Section III)

<Letterhead of the O&M Partner> LIST of Equipment Imported and indigenous

S. No.	Name of equipment	Name of manufacturer	Quantity

Attachment 7 (Section III)

<Letterhead of the O&M Partner> LIST of Manufacturer of equipment (Imported and indigenous)

S. No.	Name of equipment	Name of manufacture

Attachment 8 A (Section III)

PROFORMA FOR FINANCIAL CAPABILITY OF BIDDER (for a period of last three years)

Bid No Pack Time	age Code	Date of Opening
Name	of t	he Bidder
Year	Currency	Turnover
2019-2020 financial year		
2020-2021 financial year		
2021-2022 financial year		
Average		

Note:

1. The annual turnover amount is to be supported by annual report.

Signature of the Authorized Representative Name of the Person Position

Attachment 8 B (Section III)

PROFORMA FOR PERFORMANCE STATEMENT FOR MANUFACTURER (for a period of last three years)

Bid No	Name of Equipment	Date of Opening
	_Time	
Name of the		
Manufacturer		

Order placed by (full address of Purchaser)	Order No. & Date	Descripti on of ordered equipmen t (Model no.)	Quantity supplied	Value of order	Date of commissio ning and handing over	Has the equipment been satisfactory functioning? (Attach certificates from the Purchaser/ Consignee for each equipment)
1	2	3	4	5	6	7

NOTE: Bidder to furnish above detail for each equipment of the quoted package on separate sheet.

Signature of the Authorized Representative Name of the Person Position

Attachment 8 C (Section III)

PROFORMA FOR PERFORMANCE STATEMENT FOR BIDDER AS AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE OF THE MANUFACTURER

(for a period of last 3 years)

Bid No	Name of Equipment	Date of Opening
Time		· -
Name of the N	Nanufacturer	

Order placed by (full address of Purchaser)	Order No. & Date	Description of ordered equipment (Model no.)	Quantity supplied	Value of order	Date of commissioning and handing over	Has the equipment been satisfactory functioning? (Attach certificates from the Purchaser/ Consignee for each equipment)
1	2	3	4	5	6	7

NOTE: Bidder to furnish above detail for each equipment of the quoted package on separate sheet.

Signature of the Authorized Representative Name of the Person Position

Attachment 9 (Section III)

CAPABILITY & EXPERIENCE OF PERSONS HANDLING RTWQMS

Name and address (if applicable):

SI. No.	Name of the O&M personnel proposed to be deployed	Experience in no. of years in carrying out O&M RTWQMS	Detail curriculum Vitae Attached (YES / NO)
1.			
2.			
3.			
4.			
5.			
6.			
7.			
8.			
9.			

Attachment 10 (Section III)

PRE-REQUISITES FOR INSTALLATION OF EQUIPMENT

To:

The Member Secretary, Haryana State Pollution Control Board, C-11, sec-6, Panchkula, Haryana (India)

Dear Sir,

Following are the pre-requisites for installations of the equipment offered by us, which are required to be provided by you prior installation of the equipment:

Package no. / Item No.	Name of Equipment	the	Installation requisites*	&	commissioning	pre-

Signature of the Authorized Representative Name of the Person Position

Note:

Attachment 11 (Section III)

INSTALLATION, COMMISSIONING AND SUPPLY OF DATA OF REAL TIME WATER QUALITY MONITORING STATIONS (RTWQMS) IN STATE OF HARYANA

(Deviation Schedule)

Bidders Name & Address

To,

The Member Secretary,
Haryana State Pollution Control Board,
C-11, sec-6, Panchkula, Haryana (India)

Dear Sir,

Subject:- Deviation Schedule.

We declare that the following are the only and exhaustive deviations, variations from, exceptions and exclusions to the Bidding Documents for Services as outlined in your Technical Specifications for the subject package. Except these deviations, subject to the approval and acceptance by you, the entire work shall be performed as per your specifications and documents. Further, we agree the additional conditions, if any found elsewhere in the offer other than those stated below, save that pertaining to any rebates / discount offered, shall not be given effect to:

Equipment Code No.	Vol./ Clause Ref. / Page No.	As Specified in the Bid Documents	Deviation and Variations to the Bid document

Date:	(Signature)
Place	(Printed Name)
	(Designation)
	(Common Seal)

Attachment 12 (Section III)

LIST OF BANKS ACCEPTABLE FOR SUBMISSION OF BANK GUARANTEE FOR PERFORMANCE GUARENTEE

SCHEDULED COMMERCIAL BANKS

(A) SBI AND ASSOCIATES

- 1. State Bank of India
- 2. State Bank of Bikaner and Jaipur
- 3. State Bank of Hyderabad
- 4. State Bank of Indore
- 5. State Bank of Mysore
- 6. State Bank of Patiala
- 7. State Bank of Saurashtra
- 8. State Bank of Travancore

(B) NATIONALISED BANKS

- 9. Allahabad Bank
- 10. Andhra Bank
- 11. Bank of India
- 12. Bank of Maharashtra
- 13. Canara Bank
- 14. Central Bank of India
- 15. Corporation Bank
- 16. Dena Bank
- 17. Indian Bank
- 18. Indian Overseas Bank
- 19. Oriental Bank of Commerce
- 20. Punjab National Bank
- 21. Punjab & Sind Bank
- 22. Syndicate Bank
- 23. Union Bank of India

- 24. United Bank of India
- 25. UCO Bank
- 26. Vijaya Bank
- 27. Bank of Baroda

(C) SCHEDULED PRIVATE BANKS (INDIAN BANKS)

- 1. Bank of Rajasthan
- 2. Bharat Overseas Bank Ltd.
- 3. Catholic Syrian Bank
- 4. City Union Bank
- 5. Dhanalakshmi Bank
- 6. Federal Bank Ltd.
- 7. Jammu & Kashmir Bank Ltd.
- 8. Karnataka Bank Ltd.
- 9. Karur Vysya Bank Ltd.
- 10. Lakshmi Vilas Bank Ltd.
- 11. Lord Krishna Bank Ltd.
- 12. Nainital Bank Ltd.
- 13. Kotak Mahindra Bank
- 14. Ratnakar Bank Ltd.
- 15. Sangli Bank Ltd.
- 16. South Indian Bank Ltd.
- 17. Tamilnadu Mercantile Bank Ltd.
- 18. United Western Bank Ltd.
- 19. ING Vysya Bank Ltd.
- 20. UTI Bank Ltd.
- 21. S.B.I. Commercial & International Bank Ltd.
- 22. Ganesh Bank of Kurundwad Ltd.
- 23. INDUSIND Bank Ltd.
- 24. ICICI Bank Ltd.
- 25. HDFC Bank Ltd.
- 26. Centurion Bank of Punjab Limited
- 27. Development Credit Bank Ltd.

28. Yes Bank

(D) SCHEDULED PRIVATE BANKS (FOREIGN BANKS)

- 1. Abu Dhabi Commercial Bank Ltd.
- 2. ABN Amro Bank Ltd.
- 3. American Express Bank Ltd.
- 4. Bank of America NA
- 5. Bank of Bahrain & Kuwait
- 6. Mashreq Bank
- 7. Bank of Nova Scotia
- 8. The Bank of Tokyo-Mitsubishi UFJ Limited.
- 9. Calyon Bank
- 10. BNP Paribas
- 11. Barclays Bank
- 12. Citi Bank
- 13. Deutsche Bank
- 14. The Hong Kong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Ltd.
- 15. Oman International Bank
- 16 Societe Generale
- 17. Sonali Bank
- 18. Standard Chartered Bank
- 19. J.P Morgan Chase Bank
- 20. State Bank of Mauritius
- 21. Development Bank of Singapore
- 22. Bank of Ceylon
- 23. Bank International Indonesia
- 24. Arab Bangladesh Bank
- 25. Cho Hung Bank
- 26. China Trust Bank
- 27. MIzuho Corporate Bank Ltd.
- 28. Krung Thai Bank
- 29. Antwerp Diamond Bank N.V. Belgium

30. ING Bank N.V.

(E) PUBLIC SECTOR BANK

1. IDBI Ltd.

Attachment 13 (Section III)

LIST OF BANKS ACCEPTABLE FOR SUBMISSION OF BANK GUARANTEES FOR ADVANCE PAYMENTS, PERFORMANCE SECURITIES AND SECURITIES FOR DEED OF JOINT UNDERTAKING

SCHEDULED COMMERCIAL BANKS

A. SBI and Associates

- 1. State Bank of India
- 2. State Bank of Bikaner and Jaipur
- 3. State Bank of Hyderabad
- 4. State Bank of Indore
- 5. State Bank of Mysore
- 6. State Bank of Patiala
- 7. State Bank of Saurashtra
- 8. State Bank of Travancore

B. Nationalised Banks

- 9. Allahabad Bank
- 10. Andhra Bank
- 11. Bank of India
- 12. Bank of Maharashtra
- 13. Canara Bank
- 14. Central Bank of India
- 15. Corporation Bank
- 16. Dena Bank
- 17. Indian Bank
- 18. Indian Overseas Bank
- 19. Oriental Bank of Commerce
- 20. Punjab National Bank
- 21. Punjab & Sind Bank
- 22. Syndicate Bank
- 23. Union Bank of India
- 24. United Bank of India
- 25. UCO Bank

- 26. Vijaya Bank
- 27. Bank of Baroda

C. Foreign Banks

- 1. Bank of America NA
- 2. The Bank of Tokyo-Mitsubishi UFJ Limited.
- 3. BNP Paribas
- 4. Calyon Bank
- 5. Citi Bank N.A.
- 6. Deutsche Bank A. G.
- 7. The Hong Kong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Ltd.
- 8. Standard Chartered Bank
- 9. Societe Generale
- 10. Barclays Bank
- 11. ABN Amro Bank N. V.
- 12. Bank of Nova Scotia
- 13. Development Bank of Singapore i.e. DBS, Singapore

D. SCHEDULED PRIVATE BANKS

- 1. ING Vysya Bank Ltd.
- 2. ICICI Bank Ltd.
- 3. HDFC Bank Ltd.
- 4. UTI Bank Ltd.

E. Public Sector Banks

1. IDBI Ltd.

Attachment 14

PRE CONTRACT INTEGRITY PACT

General

WHEREAS the BUYER proposes to procure **data of RTWQMS** and the BIDDER/Seller is willing to offer/has offered the stores and

WHEREAS the BIDDER is a private company/public company/Government undertaking/partnership/registered export agency, constituted in accordance with the relevant law in the matter and the BUYER HSPCB work under the aegis of Environment & Forests, performing its functions as per the provisions of Water Act 1974, Air Act ,1981 and EPA Act, 1986.

NOW, THEREFORE,

To avoid all forms of corruption by following a system that is fair, transparent and free from any influence/prejudiced dealings prior to, during and subsequent to the currency of the contract to be entered into with a view to:-

Enabling the BUYER to obtain the desired **said services** at a competitive price in conformity with the defined specifications by avoiding the high cost and the distortionary impact of corruption on public procurement, and

Enabling BIDDERs to abstain from bribing or indulging in any corrupt practice in order to secure the contract by providing assurance to them that their competitors will also abstain from bribing and other corrupt practices and the BUYER will commit to prevent corruption, in any form, by its officials by following transparent procedures.

The parties hereto hereby agree to enter into this Integrity Pact and agree as follows:

Commitments of the BUYER

The BUYER undertakes that no official of the BUYER, connected directly or indirectly with the contract, will demand, take a promise for or accept, directly or through intermediaries, any bribe, consideration, gift,

reward, favour or any material or immaterial benefit or any other advantage from the BIDDER, either for themselves or for any person, organization or third party related to the contract in exchange for an advantage in the bidding process, bid evaluation, contracting or implementation process related to the contract.

The BUYER will, during the pre-contract stage, treat all BIDDERs alike, and will provide to all BIDDERs the same information and will not provide any such information to any particular BIDDER which could afford an advantage to that particular BIDDER in comparison to other BIDDERs.

All the officials of the BUYER will report to the appropriate Government office any attempted or completed breaches of the above commitments as well as any substantial suspicion of such abreach.

In case any such preceding misconduct on the park of such official(s) is reported by the BIDDER to the BUYER with full and verifiable facts and the same is prima facie found to be correct by the BUYER, necessary disciplinary proceedings, or any other action as deemed fit may be initiated by the BUYER and such a person shall be debarred from further dealings related to the contract process. In such a case while an inquiry is being conducted by the BUYER the proceedings under the contract would not be stalled.

Commitments of BIDDERs

3. The BIDDER commits itself to take all measures necessary to prevent corrupt practices, unfair means and illegal activities during any stage of its bid or during any pre-contract stage in order to secure the contractor in furtherance to secure it and in particular commit itself to the following:-

The BIDDER will not offer, directly or through intermediaries, any bribe, gift, consideration, reward, favour, any material or immaterial benefit or other advantage, commission, fees, brokerage or inducement to any official of the BUYER, connected directly or indirectly with the bidding process, or to any person, organization or third party related to the contract in exchange for any advantage in the bidding, evaluation, contracting and implementation of the contract.

The BIDDER further undertakes that it has not given, offered or promised to give, directly or indirectly any bribe, gift, consideration, reward, favour, any material or immaterial benefit or other advantage, commission, fees, brokerage or inducement to any official of the BUYER or otherwise in procuring the Contract or forbearing to do or having done any act in relation to the obtaining or execution of the contract or any other contract with the

Government for showing or forbearing to show favour or disfavour to any person in relation to the contract or any other contract with the Government.

- * BIDDERs shall disclose the name and address of agents and representatives and Indian BIDDERs shall disclose their foreign principals or associates.
- * BIDDERs shall disclose the payments to be made by them to agents/brokers or any other intermediary, in connection with this bid/contract.
- * The BIDDER further confirms and declares to the BUYER that the BIDDER is the original manufacture/integrator/authorized government sponsored export entity of the defence stores and has not engaged any individual or firm or company whether Indian or foreign to intercede, facilitate or in any way to recommend to the BUYER or any of its functionaries, whether officially or unofficially tothe award of the contract to the BIDDER, nor has any amount been paid, promised or intended to be paid to any such individual, firm or company in respect of any such intercession, facilitation or recommendation.

The BIDDER, either while presenting the bid or during pre-contract negotiations or before signing the contract, shall disclose any payments he has made, is committed to or intends to make to officials of the BUYER or their family members, agents, brokers or any other intermediaries in connection with the contract and the details of services agreed upon for such payments.

The BIDDER will not collude with other parties interested in the contract to impair the transparency, fairness and progress of the bidding process, bid evaluation, contracting and implementation of the contract.

The BIDDER will not accept any advantage in exchange for any corrupt practice, unfair means and illegal activities.

The BIDDER shall not use improperly, for purposes of competition or personal gain, or pass on to others, any information provided by the BUYER as part of the business relationship, regarding plans, technical proposals and business details, including information contained in any electronic data carrier. The BIDDER also undertakes to exercise due and adequate care lest any such information is divulged.

The BIDDER commits to refrain from giving any complaint directly or through any other manner without supporting it with full and verifiable facts.

The BIDDER shall not instigate or cause to instigate any third person to commit any of the actions mentioned above.

If the BIDDER or any employee of the BIDDER or any person action on behalf of the BIDDER, either directly or indirectly, is a relative of any of the officers of the BUYER, or alternatively, if any relative of an officer of the BUYER has financial interest/stake in the BIDDER's firm, the same shall be disclosed by the BIDDER at the time of fillingof tender.

The BIDDER shall not lend to or borrow any money from or enter into any monetary dealings or transactions, directly or indirectly, with any employee of the BUYER.

4. Previous Transgression

The BIDDER declares that no previous transgression occurred in the last three years immediately before signing of this Integrity Pact, with any other company in any country in respect of any corrupt practices envisaged hereunder or with any Public Sector Enterprise in India or any Government Department in India that could justify BIDDER's exclusion from the tender process.

The BIDDER agrees that if it makes incorrect statement on this subject, BIDDER can be disqualified from the tender process or the contract, if already awarded, can be terminated for such reason.

5. Sanctions for Violations

Any breach of the aforesaid provisions by the BIDDER or any one employed by it or acting on its behalf (whether with or without the knowledge of the BIDDER) shall entitle the BUYER to take all or any one of the following actions, wherever required:-

- (i) To immediately call off the pre-contract negotiations without assigning any reason or giving any compensation to the BIDDER.

 However, the proceedings with the other BIDDER (s) would continue.
 - (ii) The Earnest Money Deposit (in pre-contract stage) and/or Security Deposit/Performance Bond (after the contract is signed) shall stand forfeited either fully or partially, as decided by the BUYER and the BUYER shall not be required to assign any reason therefore.
 - (iii) To immediately cancel the contract, if already signed, without giving any compensation to the BIDDER.

- (iv) To recover all sums already paid by the BUYER, and in case of an Indian BIDDER with interest thereon at 2% higher than the prevailing Prime Lending Rate of State Bank of India, while in case of a BIDDER from a country other than India with interest thereon at 2% higher than the LIBOR. If any outstanding payment is due to the BIDDER from the BUYER in connection with any other contract for any other stores, such outstanding payment could also be utilized to recover the aforesaid sum and interest.
- (v) To encash the advance bank guarantee and performance bond/warranty bond, if furnished by the BIDDER, in order to recover the payments, already made by the BUYER, along with interest.
- (vi) To cancel all or any other Contracts with the BIDDER. The BIDDER shall be liable to pay compensation for any loss or damage to the BUYER resulting from such cancellation/rescission and the BUYER shall be entitled to deduct the amount so payable from the money (s) due to the BIDDER.
- (vii) To debar the BIDDER from participating in future bidding processes of the Government of India for a minimum period of five years, which may be further extended at the discretion of the BUYER.
- (viii) To recover all sums paid in violation of this Pact by BIDDER (s) to any middleman or agent or broker with a view to securing the contract.
- (ix) In cases where irrevocable Letters of Credit have been received in respect of any contract signed by the BUYER with the BIDDER, the same shall not be opened.
- (x) Forfeiture of Performance Bond in case of a decision by the BUYER to forfeit the same without assigning any reason for imposing sanction for violation of this Pact.

The BUYER will be entitled to take all or any of the actions mentioned at para 6.1 (i) to (x) of this Pact also on the Commission by the BIDDER or any one employed by it or acting on its behalf (whether with or without the knowledge of the BIDDER), of an offence as defined in Chapter IX of the Indian Penal code, 1860 or Prevention of Corruption Act, 1988 or any other statute enacted for prevention of corruption.

The decision of the BUYER to the effect that a breach of the provisions of this Pact has been committed by the BIDDER shall be final and conclusive on the BIDDER.

6. Fall Clause

The BIDDER undertakes that it has not supplied/is not supplying similar product/systems or subsystems at a price lower than that offered in the present bid in respect of any other Ministry/Department of the Government of India or PSU and if it is found at any stage that similar product/systems or sub systems wassupplied by the BIDDER to any other Ministry/Department of the Government of India, State Pollution Control Boards or a PSU at a lower price, then that very price, with due allowance for elapsed time, will be applicable to the present case and the difference inthe cost would be refunded by the BIDDER to the BUYER, if the contract has already been concluded.

7. Facilitation of Investigation

In case of any allegation of violation of any provisions of this Pact or payment of Commission, the BUYER or its agencies shall be entitled to examine all the documents including the Books of Accounts of the BIDDER and the BIDDER shall provide necessary information and documents in English and shall extend all possible help for the purpose of such examination.

8. Law and Place of Jurisdiction

This Pact is subject to Indian Law. The place of performance and jurisdiction is the seat/place of the BUYER.

9. Other Legal Actions

The actions stipulated in this Integrity Pact are without prejudice to any other legal action that may follow in accordance with the provisions of the extant law in force relating to any civil or criminal proceedings.

10. Validity

The validity of this Integrity Pact shall be from date of its signing and extend up-to 5 years or the complete execution of the contract to the satisfaction of both the BUYER and the BIDDER/Seller, includingwarranty period, whichever is later. In case BIDDER is unsuccessful, this Integrity Pact shall expire after six months from the date of the signing of the contract.

Should one or several provisions of this Pact turn out to be invalid; the remainder of this Pact shall remain valid. In this case, the parties will strive to come to an agreement to their original intentions.

		•	hereby 	_	the	Integrity	Pact	at
BUYER	₹				Е	BIDDER		
Desig Haryar	nation na Stat	te Pollution	Control Boa , Panchkula	C	CHIEF EXECUTI	VE OFFIC	ER	
Witne	ess					Witness		
1					1			
2					2			

VOLUME I SECTION IV FORMS OF FINANCIAL BID

Attachment – 1

VOLUME I

SECTION V

GENERAL CONDITIONS OF CONTRACT (GCC)

GENERAL CONDITIONS OF CONTRACT

These conditions encompass all the Works to be executed and completed by the Contractor for the Project and as further defined herein.

1. DEFINITION

"GCC" means the General Conditions of Contract contained in this Section.

2.0 INTENT OF CONTRACT

The intent and spirit of the Contract is to provide all the details for the Works herein specified to be fully completed within the duration of the Contract.

It is hereby understood that the Contractor, in accepting the Contract, agrees to furnish any and everything necessary for such intent notwithstanding any omission in the Contract.

All matters omitted from the Contract which may reasonably be inferred to be obviously necessary for the efficient and stable completion of the Works shall be deemed to be included in the Contract and the Contractor shall be held responsible for any errors or losses which the Contractor may make due to such omissions as above.

3.0 PERFORMANCE OF WORKS

Unless otherwise provided for, the Works shall be performed by the Contractor in compliance with S/W, GCC and the Specifications in this Bidding Documents issued by the Board and Contract to be concluded between the Board and the Contractor.

Unless otherwise agreed or stated, the Contractor shall bear all the cost and take all the responsibilities for the performance of all the Works.

3.1 Program

Before commencement of the Services, the Service Provider shall submit to the Employer for approval a Program showing the general methods, arrangements, order and timing for all activities. The Services shall be carried out in accordance with the approved Program as updated.

3.2 Starting date

The Service Provider shall complete installation and commissioning of the

equipment required for data supply for all the 5 locations named in the contract within 4 months from the data of the contract.

The Service Provider shall commence supply of data in the manner specified in Appendix A to the contract from locations where the equipment become operational and the scope of data supply shall be extended progressively so as to ensure commencement of data supply from all 5 locations within 120 days.

3.3 Intended completion date

Unless terminated earlier pursuant to **Clause 24**, the Service Provider shall complete the activities by the Intended Completion Date is **5 years** from the date of supply of required data for **all 5 locations**. If the Service Provider does not complete the activities by the Intended Completion Date, it shall be liable to pay liquidated damage as per **Clause 22**. In this case, the Completion Date will be the date of completion of all activities.

3.4 Modification

Modification of the terms and conditions of this Contract, including any modification of the scope of the Services or of the Contract Price, may only be made by written agreement between the Parties.

4.0 USE OF CONTRACT DOCUMENTS AND INFORMATION

The Contractor shall not, without the Board's prior written consent, disclose the Contract, or any provision thereof, or any specification, plan, drawing, pattern, sample, or information furnished by or on behalf of the Board, Consultant and their authorized personnel and body in connection therewith, to any person other than a person employed by the Contractor in the performance of the Contract. Disclosure to any such employed person shall be made in confidence and shall extend only so far as may be necessary for purposes of such performance.

The Contractor shall not, without the Board's prior written consent, make use of any documents or information enumerated here above except for purposes of performing the Contract.

Any documents other than the Contract itself, enumerated in here above shall remain the property of the Board and shall be returned to the Board on completion of the Contractor's performance under the Contract if so required by the Board.

5.0 LOCATION

As defined by the board as per list attached for CAAQMS in the cities of Haryana.

6.0 LANGUAGE AND CALENDAR

Language

All documents and correspondence related to the Contract shall be made in English.

Calendar

All dates, months, years and terms referred in the Contract shall relate with the Gregorian calendar, unless otherwise mentioned specifically.

7.0 SITE CONDITION

Site Condition

The Contractor shall study the existing Site Conditions, referring to the Bidding Documents carefully in order to familiarize themselves with the Works. The Contractor should ascertain all particulars of the location and Site conditions at their own expenses.

Access to Site

The Board will give the Contractor access of the Sites in order to perform the Works during the period of validity of the Contract unless otherwise provided.

8.0 COUNTRY OF ORIGIN

All the Equipment supplied/used/deployed under the Contract shall have their origin in the eligible countries <u>except countries sharing the land</u> border with India.

For the purposes of this Clause, "Origin" means the place where the Equipment were produced or manufactured. The Equipment is produced or manufactured when, though manufacturing, processing, or substantial and major assembly of components, a commercially recognized new product results that is substantially different in basic characteristics in purpose or utility from its components.

The origin of Equipment is distinct from the nationality of the Contractor.

9. CODE AND STANDARD

Code and Standard

All the Equipment and the Works shall conform to the approved and

authorized codes and standards of the origin country, the following standards wherever applicable and Indian Standard which are in force at the moment of the installation.

- Japanese Industrial Standard (JIS)
- Environmental Protection Agency of United States (U.S EPA) Standard
- International Organization for Standard (ISO)
- British Standard (BS)
- TUV Germany
- MCERTS- SIRA certification U.K Environment Agency

Other internationally prevailing standards are accepted for the Equipment, unless otherwise indicated.

Even if some codes and standards are designated in the Specifications, the other codes and standards not shown therein are also applicable instead of the designated ones as far as they are equivalent to such designated codes and standards and meet the requirement thereof.

Metric System

All dimensions and performance of the Equipment shall be stated in metric system, unless otherwise specified in the Specifications.

10.0 PROTECTION AND SAFETY

The Contractor shall be totally responsible for all the reasonable precautions against fire in respect of the Works, temporary works, offices, storage yards and other places and things connected therewith.

The Contractor shall comply with all rules, regulations and orders which have been made by the Government of India, the Board or any other competent authority and the contractor shall provide sufficient fire-fighting protection in respect of the safety of the property and personnel of the Board.

11.0 WORK SCHEDULE

The time schedule for the Works to be carried out by the Contractor is specified in S/W.

12.0 PROJECT FORMATION

The authorized personnel of Haryana State Pollution Control Board for the Project who is responsible for any coordination with the Contractor is:

Member Secretary or Authorized Representative, Haryana

State Pollution Control Board, C-11, sec-6, Panchkula, Haryana (India)

Any correspondence to or authorization from the Board shall be made with the Member Secretary here above.

13.0 INSTALLATION

Prior to the establishment of Equipment layout and installation plan, the Contractor shall verify, check and inspect the designs and specific site conditions of monitoring stations and laboratories where the Equipment are to be installed so as to make good arrangement for installation and utility assembly in consultation with the Board.

14.0 INSPECTION AND TEST

The Board shall have the right to inspect and the test the Equipment to confirm their conformity to the Specifications without any extra charge to the Board by the Contractor. The Contractor shall notify the Board and the Consultant in writing, in a timely manner (at least 07 days in advance), of the schedule of inspections and test.

The inspections and test shall be conducted on the premises of the Contractor and/or the Manufacturers and the Sites. If conducted on the premises of the Contractor and/or the Manufacturers, all reasonable facilities and assistance, including access to drawings and production data, shall be furnished to the Consultant for the inspections and test at no charge to the Board.

Should any inspected or tested Equipment fail to conform to the Specifications, the Board may reject the Equipment, and the Contractor shall either replace the rejected Equipment or make alternations necessary to meet the Specifications requirements free of cost to the Board.

No pre dispatch inspection is envisaged for equipment and contractor shall ensure factory test / inspection reports.

However, the Board reserves the right to appoint at its cost, any inspection agency (other than suggested by contractors) which will be binding on the contractor.

- Performance Test Certificate of all RTWQMS
- Certificate of Traceability
- Verification of System Completeness
- Product Certificate

15.0 COMPLETION

The Contractor shall complete all the Works by the date as specified in S/W.

16.0 SUBMISSION OF DOCUMENTS

The Contractor shall submit the documents specified in tender to the Board. The Contractor shall prepare all the documents in English.

Besides the documents thereof, the Contractor shall submit the notices, reports, and other documents when deemed necessary, in accordance with the direction of the Board.

17.0 PAYMENT

Payment

The method, terms and conditions of payment to be made to the Contractor under this Contract shall be specified in GCC.

The Contractor's request(s) for payment for, as appropriate, the Works performed and fulfillment of other obligations stipulated in the Contract shall be made to the Board in writing, accompanied by documents specified in GCC.

Currency of Payment

The currency in which payment is made to the Contractor under this Contract shall be in INR.

Payment upon termination

Upon termination of this Contract pursuant to Clauses 24.4, the Employer shall make the following payments to the Service Provider:

- (a) remuneration pursuant to Clause 17 for Services satisfactorily performed prior to the effective date of termination;
- (b) except in the case of termination pursuant to paragraphs (a),
- (b), (d) of Clause 24.4, reimbursement of any reasonable cost incident to the prompt and orderly termination of the Contract, including the cost of the return travel of the Personnel.

18.0 PRICES

Prices mentioned by the Contractor to the Board for the Equipment installed and the Works performed under the Contract shall not vary from the prices quoted by the Contractor in the Financial Bid.

19.0 PERFORMANCE SECURITY

Performance Security

The Contractor within seven (07) days from the date of notification of award shall furnish a Bank Guarantee from a reputed Indian or

Nationalized Commercial Bank having license to do business in India to the Board in line with the enclosed from as per Attachment 1 Section V towards performance guarantee for an amount equal to ten (10) percent of the total Price under the Contract for faithful and due fulfillment by the Contractor of all obligations under the terms and conditions of the Contract.

The Contractor shall ensure that Contract Performance Security remains valid at least one year after completion of operation of entire system satisfactorily.

Return of Performance Security

The performance security will be discharged by the Board and returned to the Contractor after expiry of the Contractor's performance obligations under the Contract, including obligations.

The Service Provider shall provide the Performance Security to the Employer no later than the date specified in the Letter of acceptance. The Performance Security shall be issued in an amount and form and by a bank or surety acceptable to the Employer, and denominated in the types and proportions of the currencies in which the Contract Price is payable. The performance Security shall be valid for 1 year from the Completion Date of the Contract in case of a bank guarantee.

20.0 ASSIGNMENT

The Contractor shall not assign in whole or in part, its obligations to perform under this Contract, except with the Board's prior written consent.

21.0 DELAYS IN THE CONTRACTOR'S PERFORMANCE

21.1 Delays in the Contractor's Performance

Works shall be made by the Contractor in accordance with the time schedule specified in S/W.

21.2 Notification of Delay

If at any time during performance of the Contract, the Contractor and/or the Manufacturers should encounter conditions impending timely delivery of the Equipment and performance of the Works, the Contractor shall promptly notify the Board in writing of the fact of the delay, its likely duration and its cause(s). As soon as practicable after receipt of the Contractor's notice, the Board shall evaluate the situation and may at its discretion extend the Contractor's time for performance, with or without liquidated damages, in which case the extension shall be ratified by the Board by amendment of the Contract.

22.1 LIABILITY OF LIQUIDATED DAMAGES

Except as provided under **Clause 25** of GCC, a delay by the Contractor in the performance of its delivery obligations shall render the Contractor liable to the imposition of liquidated damages pursuant to **Clause 22** hereunder, unless an extension of time is agreed upon pursuant to Sub**clause 21.2** here above without the application of liquidated damages.

22.2 LIQUIDATED DAMAGES

If the Contractor fails to perform the Works within the period specified in S/W, the Board shall, without prejudice to its other remedies under the Contract, deduct from the Contract Price, as liquidated damages, a sum equivalent to the percentage as mentioned below. Once the maximum is reached, the Board may consider termination of the Contract pursuant to Clause 24 of GCC.

If supply of water quality data from all 5 locations is not commenced by the Service Provider within 4 months from the date of contract, liquidated damages shall be levied as under:

Liquidated damages will apply at the rate of 0.05% of the contract price per day of delay in case Service Provider delays commissioning in all 5 stations for commencing supply of aforesaid data.

However, in case commissioning is delayed in lesser number of stations, amount of Liquidated damages referred to above shall be reduced on Prorata basis in proportion to the number of stations which are still to be commissioned.

Maximum amount of liquidated damages shall be 10% of the contract price.

The Employer may deduct liquidated damages from payments due to the Service Provider. Payment of liquidated damages shall not affect the Service Provider's liabilities.

23.0 SUSPENSION OF WORK

The Contractor shall not suspend the whole or any part of the Works without notice to the Board in writing. The Contractor thereupon shall do all possible endeavors to reduce any expenses or costs resulting from the suspension. Such suspension shall not nullify the Contract.

24.0 TERMINATION FOR DEFAULT

24.1 Termination for Default

The Board, without prejudice to any other remedy for breach of Contract, by written notice of default sent to the Contractor, may terminate this Contract in whole or in part:

1) If the Contractor fails to perform any or all of the Works within the period specified in S/W, or extension thereof granted by the Board pursuant to **Clause 23** of GCC

OI

2) If the Contractor fails to perform any other obligations under the Contract.

24.2 Liability for Excess Cost for Unperformed Work

In the event the Board terminates the Contract in whole or in part pursuant to **Sub-clause 24.1** here above the Board may procure at the risk and cost of the contractor, upon such terms and in such manner as it deems appropriate, the equipment / works similar to those undelivered / unperformed and the Contractor shall be liable to the Board for any excess costs for such similar equipment / works. However, the Contractor shall continue performance of the Contract to the extent not terminated.

24.3 TERMINATION FOR INSOLVENCY

The Board at any time terminates the Contract by giving written notice to the Contractor if the Contractor becomes bankrupt or otherwise insolvent. In this event, termination will be without compensation to the Contractor, provided that such, termination will not prejudice or affect any right of action or remedy which has accrued or will accrue thereafter to the Board.

24.4 By the employer

The Employer may terminate this Contract, by not less than thirty (30) days' written notice of termination to the Service Provider, to be given after the occurrence of any of the events specified in paragraphs (a) through (d) of this Sub-Clause 24.4:

- (a) if the Service Provider does not remedy a failure in the performance of its obligations under the Contract, within thirty (30) days after being notified or within any further period as the Employer may have subsequently approved in writing;
- (b) if the Service Provider become insolvent or bankrupt;
- (c) if, as the result of Force Majeure, the Service Provider is unable to perform a material portion of the Services for a period of not less than sixty (60) days; or
- (d) if the Service Provider, in the judgment of the Employer has engaged in corrupt or fraudulent practices in competing for or in executing the Contract.

For the purposes of this Sub-Clause:

 "corrupt practice"1 is the offering, giving, receiving or soliciting, directly or indirectly, of anything of value to influence improperly the actions of another party;

- "fraudulent practice"2 is any act or omission, including a misrepresentation, that knowingly or recklessly misleads, or attempts to mislead, a party to obtain a financial or other benefit or to avoid an obligation;
- (iii) "collusive practice"3 is an arrangement between two or more parties designed to achieve an improper purpose, including to influence improperly the actions of another party;
- (iv) "coercive practice"4 is impairing or harming, or threatening to impair or harm, directly or indirectly, any party or the property of the party to influence improperly the actions of a party;

25.0 FORCE MAJEURE

25.1 Definition

For the purposes of this Contract, "Force Majeure" means an event which is beyond the reasonable control of a Party and which makes a Party's performance of its obligations under the Contract impossible or so impractical as to be considered impossible under the circumstances.

25.2 No Breach of Contract

The failure of a Party to fulfill any of its obligations under the contract shall not be considered to be a breach of, or default under, this Contract insofar as such inability arises from an event of Force Majeure, provided that the Party affected by such an event (a) has taken all reasonable precautions, due care and reasonable alternative measures in order to carry out the terms and conditions of this Contract, and (b) has informed the other Party as soon as possible about the occurrence of such an event.

25.3 Extension of Time

Any period within which a Party shall, pursuant to this Contract, complete any action or task, shall be extended for a period equal to the time during which such Party was unable to perform such action as a result of Force Majeure.

25.4 Payments

During the period of their inability to perform the Services as a result of an event of Force Majeure, the Service Provider shall be entitled to continue to be paid under the terms of this Contract, as well as to be reimbursed for additional costs reasonably and necessarily incurred by them during such period for the purposes of the Services and in reactivating the Service after the end of such period.

84

Notwithstanding the provisions of **Clauses 23 and 24** in GCC, the Contractor shall not be liable for forfeiture of its performance security, liquidated damages, or termination for default if and to the extent that its delay in performance or other failure to perform its obligations under the Contract is the result of an event of Force Majeure.

For the purposes of this Clause, "Force Majeure" means an event beyond the control of the Contractor and not involving the Contractor's fault or negligence and not foreseeable. Such events may include, but are not restricted to, acts of the Board in its sovereign capacity, wars or revolutions, fires, floods, epidemics, quarantine restrictions, and freight embargoes.

If a Force Majeure situation arises, the Contractor shall promptly notify the Board in writing of such condition and the cause thereof. Unless otherwise directed by the Board in writing, the Contractor shall continue to perform its obligations under the Contract as far as is reasonably practical, and shall seek all reasonable alternative means for performance not prevented by the Force Majeure event.

26.0 RESOLUTION OF DISPUTES

26.1 Applicable law and jurisdiction

The contract shall be governed by the laws of India for the time being in force and the courts in Panchkula shall have exclusive jurisdiction to adjudicate the disputes.

26.2 Settlement of Disputes

Any dispute(s) or difference(s) arising out of or in connection with the Contract shall, to the extent possible in the first instance be resolved amicably between the Contractor and the Owner.

If, after thirty (30) days, the parties have failed to resolve their dispute or difference by such mutual consultation, then either the owner or the Contractor may give notice to the other party of its intention to commence arbitration, as hereinafter provided, as to the matter in dispute, and no arbitration in respect of this matter may be commenced unless such notice is given.

Any dispute or difference in respect of which a notice of intention to commence arbitration has been given in accordance with this Clause shall be finally settled by arbitration. Arbitration may be commenced prior to or after delivery of the Goods/services under the Contract.

In the case of dispute or difference arising between the owner and Contractor relating to any matter arising out of or connected with this agreement, such disputes or difference shall be settled in accordance with the Arbitration and Conciliation Act, 1996. The unresolved dispute or differences shall be replaced to arbitration of sole arbitrator, to be appointed by Chairman, HSPCB. The cost of arbitration shall be shared equally by the parties. The arbitration proceedings shall be held at Panchkula, Haryana, India, and the language of the arbitration proceedings and that of documents and communications between the parties shall be English.

The decision of the arbitrators shall be final and binding upon both parties. The cost and expenses of Arbitration proceedings will be paid as determined by the arbitral tribunal. However, the expenses incurred by each party in connection with the preparation, presentation etc. of its proceedings as also the fees and expenses paid to the arbitrator appointed by such party or on its behalf shall be borne by each party itself.

27.0 TAXES AND DUTIES

The Service Provider, Subcontractors, and their Personnel shall pay such taxes, duties, fees, and other impositions as may be levied under the Applicable Law, the amount of which is deemed to have been included in the Contract Price.

Note: Bidders may like to ascertain availability of excise/custom duty exemption benefits available in India to the contracts. They are solely responsible for obtaining such benefits which they have considered in their bid and in case of failure to receive such benefits for reasons whatsoever, the Employer will not compensate the Service Provider. Where the bidder has quoted taking into account such benefits, he must give all information required for issue of certificates in terms of such notifications to the Qualification Information in the bid. To the extent the Employer determines the quantity indicated therein are reasonable keeping in view the bill of quantities, construction programme and methodology, the certificates will be issued within 60 [sixty] days of signing of contract and no subsequent changes will be permitted. No certificate will be issued for items where no quantity/capacity of equipment is indicated in the statement. bids which do not conform to the above provisions will be treated as non-responsive and rejected. Any delay in procurement of the construction equipment /machinery/goods as a result of the above shall not be a cause for granting any extension of time. The information to be provided as per Annexure III of Volume II.

28.0 INJURY AND DAMAGE

Injury or Death of Persons

The Contractor shall be liable for and shall indemnify the Board against any liability, loss claim or proceedings whatsoever arising under any statue or law in respect of personal injury or death or any disability caused by the carrying out of the Works unless due to any act or neglect of the Board, or

of any person for whom the Board is responsible.

Without prejudice to the Contractor's liability to indemnify the Board, the Contractor shall maintain and cause any manufacturers and subcontractors to maintain such insurance as necessary to cover the liability of the Contractor or, as the case may be, of such Manufacturers and subcontractors, in respect of personal injuries of deaths arising out of or in the course of or caused by the carrying out of the Works.

Damage to Property

The Contractor shall liable for and indemnify the Board against and insure and cause any Manufacturers and subcontractors to insure against any expense, liability, loss claim or proceedings in respect of any damage whatsoever to any real or personal property for any one occurrence in so far as such damage arises out of or in the course of or by reason of the carrying out of the Works and is due to any negligence, omission or default of the Contractor or any person for whom the Contractor is responsible or any Manufacturers and subcontractors or person for whom the Manufacturers and subcontractors are responsible.

29.0 EFFECTIVENESS OF CONTRACT

This Contract shall come into force and effect on the date of the Letter of Award and shall be in force until the Works have been completed and all the payments have been made to the Contractor.

30.0 LAWS AND REGULATIONS

The formation, validity and performance of this Contract shall be governed as to all matters by and under the laws and regulations of India and courts in Haryana shall have exclusive jurisdiction in all matters arising under this Contract.

The Contractor shall respect and abide by all laws and regulations of India and shall make its best effort to ensure that the personnel of the Contractor and their dependents, while staying in India, shall respect and abide by all laws and regulations of India. The Contractor shall protect, absolve and indemnify the Board and their representatives from any claim, loss or damage arising from any non-compliance alleged or proved, without claiming them for payment.

31.0 NOTICES

Any notice given by one party to the other pursuant to this Contract shall be sent to the other party in writing and confirmed in writing to the other party's address specified in tender.

A notice shall be effective when delivered or on the notice's effective date,

whichever is later.

32.0 OBLIGATIONS OF THE SERVICE PROVIDER

32.1 General

The Service Provider shall perform the Services in accordance with the Specifications and the S/W, and carry out its obligations with all due diligence, efficiency, and economy, in accordance with generally accepted professional techniques and practices, and shall observe sound management practices, and employ appropriate advanced technology and safe methods. The Service Provider shall always act, in respect of any matter relating to this Contract or to the Services, as faithful adviser to the Employer, and shall at all times support and safeguard the Employer's legitimate interests in any dealings with Subcontractors or third parties.

32.2 Conflict of Interests

32.2.1 Service Provider Not to Benefit from Commissions and Discounts.

The remuneration of the Service Provider pursuant to **Clause 36** shall constitute the Service Provider's sole remuneration in connection with this Contract or the Services, and the Service Provider shall not accept for their own benefit any trade commission, discount, or similar payment in connection with activities pursuant to this Contract or to the Services or in the discharge of their obligations under the Contract, and the Service Provider shall use their best efforts to ensure that the Personnel, any Subcontractors, and agents of either of them similarly shall not receive any such additional remuneration.

32.2.2 Service Provider and Affiliates Not to be Otherwise Interested in Project.

The Service Provider agree that, during the term of this Contract and after its termination, the Service Provider and its affiliates, as well as any Subcontractor and any of its affiliates, shall be disqualified from providing goods, works, or Services (other than the Services and any continuation thereof) for any project resulting from or closely related to the Services.

32.2.3 Prohibition of Conflicting Activities

Neither the Service Provider nor the Personnel shall engage, either directly or indirectly, in any of the following activities:

- (a) during the term of this Contract, any business or professional activities in the Government's country which would conflict with the activities assigned to them under this Contract;
- (b) during the term of this Contract, neither the Service Provider nor their

- Subcontractors shall hire public employees in active duty or on any type of leave, to perform any activity under this Contract;
- (c) after the termination of this Contract, activities prohibited after termination of this Contract are: Selling and/or reporting on data, results, and/or findings from the project. Any reporting on data/results outside of what is stipulated in this contract is strictly prohibited.

32.3 Confidentiality

The Service Provider, its Subcontractors, and the Personnel of either of them shall not, either during the term or within two (2) years after the expiration of this Contract, disclose any proprietary or confidential information relating to the Project, the Services, this Contract, or the Employer's business or operations without the prior written consent of the Employer.

32.4 Insurance to be Taken Out by the Service Provider

The Service Provider

(a) shall take out and maintain, and shall cause any Subcontractors to take out and maintain, at its (or the Subcontractors', as the case may be) own cost but on terms and conditions approved by the Employer, insurance against the risks, and for the coverage:-

The risks and coverage by insurance shall be:

- i. Third Party motor vehicle liability insurance in respect of motor vehicle operated in the Employer's country by the Service Provider or its personnel or subconsultants, with a minimum coverage as per motor vehicle act 1938 and as amended to date.
- ii. Employer's liability and workmen's compensation insurance in respect of the experts/personnel and sub-consultants in accordance with the relevant provisions of the applicable law in the Employer's country, as well as, with respect to such Experts, any such life, health, accident, travel or other insurance as may be appropriate:
- iii. Professional liability insurance , with a minimum coverage of total ceiling amount of the contract
 - Insurance against loss of or damage to (i) equipment purchased in whole or part with funds provided under this contract (ii) the Service provider's property used in the performance of the services and (iii) any documents prepared by the Service Provider in the performance of the services are properly covered under the total ceiling amount of the contract.
- (b) at the Employer's request, shall provide evidence to the Employer showing that such insurance has been taken out and maintained and that the current premiums have been paid.

32.5 Service Provider's Actions Requiring Employer's Prior Approval

The Service Provider shall obtain the Employer's prior approval in writing

- before taking any of the following actions:
- (a) entering into a subcontract for the performance of any part of the Services,
- (b) appointing such members of the Personnel not listed by name in Appendix B ("Key Personnel and Subcontractors"),
- (c) changing the Program of activities; and
- (d) The other actions are notification prior to moving stations, changing sensor technologies, changing procedures for calibration.

32.6 Reporting Obligations

The Service Provider shall submit to the Employer the reports and documents mentioned in Appendix A in the form, in the numbers, and within the periods set forth in the said Appendix.

32.7 Documents Prepared by the Service Provider to Be the Property of the Employer

All plans, drawings, specifications, designs, reports, and other documents and software submitted by the Service Provider in accordance with Sub-Clause 32.6 shall become and remain the property of the Employer, and the Service Provider shall, not later than upon termination or expiration of this Contract, deliver all such documents and software to the Employer, together with a detailed inventory thereof. The Service Provider may retain a copy of such documents and software. Restrictions on the use of documents prepared by the Service Provider are: all data and documents will be the exclusive property of HSPCB, during the course of the project and after termination or the end of the contract.

33. Service Provider's Personnel

33.1 Description of Personnel

The titles, agreed job descriptions, minimum qualifications, and estimated periods of engagement in the carrying out of the Services of the Service Provider's Key Personnel are described in Appendix B. The Key Personnel and Subcontractors listed by title as well as by name in Appendix B are hereby approved by the Employer.

33.2Removal and/or Replacement of Personnel

- (a) Except as the Employer may otherwise agree, no changes shall be made in the Key Personnel. If, for any reason beyond the reasonable control of the Service Provider, it becomes necessary to replace any of the Key Personnel, the Service Provider shall provide as a replacement a person of equivalent or better qualifications.
- (b) If the Employer finds that any of the Personnel have (i) committed serious misconduct or have been charged with having committed a criminal action, or (ii) have reasonable cause to be dissatisfied with the performance of any of the Personnel, then the Service Provider shall, at the Employer's written

- request specifying the grounds thereof, provide as a replacement a person with qualifications and experience acceptable to the Employer.
- (c) The Service Provider shall have no claim for additional costs arising out of or incidental to any removal and/or replacement of Personnel.

34. Obligations of the Employer

34.1 Assistance and Exemptions

The Employer shall use its best efforts to ensure that the Government shall provide the Service Provider such assistance and exemptions.

Certificate for availing exemption benefits as referred to in the note below **Clause 27 of GCC** will be issued by the Employer however, the Service Provider shall be solely responsible obtaining such benefits.

34.2 Change in the Applicable Law

If, after the date of this Contract, there is any change in the Applicable Law with respect to taxes and duties which increases or decreases the cost of the Services rendered by the Service Provider, then the remuneration and reimbursable expenses otherwise payable to the Service Provider under this Contract shall be increased or decreased accordingly by agreement between the Parties, and corresponding adjustments shall be made to the amounts referred in the contract price, as the case may be.

34.3 Services and Facilities

HSPCB shall give permission to the service provider for access to the site and construction of the station for each location.

35. Payments to the Service Provider

35.1 Lump-Sum Remuneration

The Service Provider's remuneration shall not exceed the Contract Price and shall be a fixed lump-sum including all Subcontractors' costs, and all other costs incurred by the Service Provider in carrying out the Services described in Appendix A. Except as provided in **Sub-Clause 34.2**, the Contract Price may only be increased above the amounts stated in **Sub-Clause 35.2** if the Parties have agreed to additional payments.

35.2 Contract Price

The price payable in Indian currency in the contract.

35.3 Terms and Conditions of Payment

Payments will be made to the Service Provider according to the payment schedule. The advance payment of 25 % of the total contract price (Advance

for Mobilization, Materials and Supplies) shall be made against the provision by the Service Provider of a bank guarantee for the same amount.

35.3.1 The payment shall be made according to following schedule:-

- a) Advance for Mobilization, Equipment and Supplies: 25 percent of the Contract Price shall be paid as interest free advance after signing of the contract, within 30 days from the date the submission of a bank guarantee for the same of the same amount.
- b) The advance payment will set off by the Employer by deduction at the rate of 25% from each bill certified for payment by the Data Qualification Consultant (An organization, Consultant or Agency) to the Service Provider. The deduction from payments will commence 6 months after the Service Provider started data supply and will continue so as to complete recovery of full amount of advance payment within 30 months from the date of the contract. The amount of deduction will be suitably revised/ raised by the Employer, if necessary, so as to complete the recovery of full amount of advance payment within said period of 30 months.
- c) The bank guarantee for the advance payment shall remain valid until entire amount of the advance payment has been adjusted from the Service Provider bill, after which the Bank guarantee will be returned by the Employer.
- d) At the end of each quarter of year, Service Provider shall submit its bill for the data validated by the Data Qualification Consultant (An organization, Consultant or Agency) on the basis of rates determined in the manner provided in **GCC 35.3.2** below, to the said Consultant who after verification and indicating deductions due from the payment will forward the certified bill to the Employer for arranging payment. The Employer shall make payment as early as possible after receipt of bill or after receipt of bill by the Data Qualification Consultant/contractor (if deployed at any time in future).

35.3.2 Method for calculating price for data supply:

Payment for hourly data supplied from Fixed and floating Stations:

Price payable for data supplied from Fixed Stations will be determined from the contract price as under:

Contract Price =(Assumed P -Total Contract Price)

		Annual Price for hourly data under each category of parameter	
Α	Q	P / [No. of Years *365*24*(Q)]	

As per Volume II- Activity Schedule, total no. of parameters for 5 locations are as under

Quantity of Parameters	No.s (10 parameters per stations)
Q	50

Demonstration of hourly price calculation if, due to any reasons, the number of RTWQM stations are changed from the present target of 5 RTWQM stations for a period of 5 years. (Formula for price calculation is mentioned above.

Hourly rate= $P/{365x24x5x10}$ ----- per parameter

36. Quality Control

36.1 Identifying Defects

- 36.1.1 The Employer shall check the Service Provider's performance and notify him of any Defects that are found. Such checking shall not affect the Service Provider's responsibilities. The Employer may instruct the Service Provider to search for a Defect and to uncover and test any service that the Employer considers may have a Defect.
- 36.1.2 The principle and modalities of inspection of the Services by the Employer are as follows: Data supplied by the Service Provider shall be subjected to validation by the Employer as per procedure stipulated in Volume II- Performance Specifications and only the data validated by the Data Qualification Consultant (if or as & when appointed by the employer) will qualify for payment.

36.2 Correction of Defects and Lack of Performance Penalty

- (a) The Employer shall give notice to the Service Provider of any Defects before the end of the Contract. The Defects liability period shall be extended for as long as Defects remain to be corrected.
- (b) Every time notice a Defect is given, the Service Provider shall correct the notified Defect within the length of time specified by the Employer's notice.
- (c) If the Service Provider has not corrected a Defect within the time specified in the Employer's notice, the Employer will assess the cost of having the Defect corrected, the Service Provider will pay this amount, and a Penalty for Lack of Performance calculated as described in Clause 22.

Attachment 1

Form of Bank Guarantee for Performance Security

(to	be stamped in accordance with Stamp Act, i issuing Bank)	•
		Bank Guarantee No
Ref.	No.:	Date :
Hary	Member Secretary, vana State Pollution Control Board, ., sec-6, Panchkula, Haryana (India)	
Dear	Sirs	
Betw (her	AGREEMENT is made on thedays of- een [Name of the Bank] of einafter called "the Guarantor") of the or rol Board (hereinafter called "the Board") of t	[address of the bank] ne part and State Pollution
WHE	EREAS	
(1)	this agreement is supplemental to a contract Contract Number) (hereinafter called "the	e Contract") made between contract") made between cardon and the one part and the Contractor agreed and y and O&M of RTWQMS for of [amount
(2)	the Guarantor has agreed to guarantee t Contract in the manner hereinafter appearing	

NOW, THEREFORE, the Guarantor hereby agrees with the Board as follows;

(a) If the Contractor (unless relieved from the performance by any clause of the Contract or by statute or by the decision of a tribunal of competent jurisdiction) shall in any respect fail to execute the Contract

(b) The guarantor shall not be discharged or released from his guarantee by an arrangement between the Contractor and the Board, with or without the consent of the Guarantor, or by any alteration in the obligations undertaken by the Contractor, or by any forbearance on the part of the Contractor, whether as to payment, time, performance, or otherwise, any notice to the Guarantor of any such arrangement, alteration, or forbearance is hereby expressly waived.

This guarantee shall be valid for one year after successful commissions of entire system from the date of expiry of O&M period as specified in the Contract.

Given under our hand on the date first mentioned above.

	SIGNED BYfor and on behalf of the Guarantor (Seal of Guarantor)
in the presence of	
(Witness)	

Attachment 2 (Section V)

FORM FOR CONTRACT AGREEMENT FOR SUPPLY OF DATA OF REAL TIME WATER QUALITY MONITORING STATIONS (RTWQMS)

Whereas, Contractor is having expertise in the business inter alia, of supplying of data of RTWQMS and the owner hasengaged the Contractor to supply of data of said RTWQMS upon the terms & conditions set forth in this Agreement and the Letter of Award referred above issued by the Owner

including all the documents referred in the above Letter of Award.

NOW THIS AGREEMENT WITNESSETH AS FOLLOWS;

- 1. In this Agreement words and expressions shall have the same meanings as are respectively assigned to them in the Conditions of Contract referred to.
- 2. The following documents shall be deemed to form and be read and construed as part of this Agreement, viz.:
 - i) Scope of Works;
 - ii) Financial Bid;
 - iii) Technical Specifications;
 - iv) General Conditions of Contract;
 - v) The Board's Notification of Award.

This Contract sets forth the entire contract and agreement between the parties pertaining to the supply of data of RTWQMS and supersedes any and all earlier verbal or written agreements pertaining to the supply of the Goods.

This Contract shall prevail over all other Contract documents. In the event of any discrepancy or inconsistency within the Contract documents, then the documents shall prevail in the order listed above.

- 3. In consideration of the payments to be made by the Board to the Contractor as hereinafter mentioned, the Contractor hereby covenants with the Board to perform the Works and to remedy defects therein conformity in all respects with the provisions of the Contract.
- 4. The Board hereby covenants to pay the Contractor in consideration of the performance of the Works and the remedying of defects therein the Contract Price or such other sum as may become payable under the provisions of the Contract at the times and in the manner prescribed by the Contract.
- 5. Any notice under the Contract shall be in the form of letter, telex, cable or facsimile. Notices to either party shall be given at such address or addresses as such party shall specify from time to time by written notice to the other. In the absence of such notice to the contrary, notice to

the Board shall be properly addressed to:

The Member Secretary, Haryana State Pollution Control Board, C-11, sec-6, Panchkula, Haryana (India)

And notice to the Contractor shall be	properly addressed to:
[Contractor's address and electronic tr	ansmission address]
A notice shall be effective when delivered whichever is later.	I or on the notice's effective date,
IN WITNESS whereof the parties hereto he executed in accordance with their respe above written.	
	Signature of Board's Authorized Representative
Signed, Sealed and Delivered by the said	Signature of Contractor
(For the Board) in the presence of	
Signed, Sealed and Delivered by the said	
(For the Contractor) in the presence of	
-	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·

Attachment 3 (Section V)

PROFORMA OF CERTIFICATE FOR ISSUE BY THE HSPCB AFTER SUCCESSFUL COMMISSIONING OF EQUIPMENT

No.:

3.

Date:

M/s			
Subj	ect:	Certificate of Commissioning of eq	uipment.
1.	rece acce acce	s is to certify that the equipment a eived in good condition along wi essories (subject to remarks in P ordance with the Contract / spec alled and commissioned.	ith all the standard and special ara No.2) and a set of spares in
	a) b) c) d) e) f) g) h) i)	Bill of Lading(for import contract) Name of the vessel/transport RR No	dated er dated formance test
SI. No.		Description	Amount to the recovered

BOARD CONTRACTOR

and personnel have been trained to operate the equipment.

The proving/performance test has been done to out entire satisfaction

- 4. The contractor has fulfilled his contractual obligation satisfactorily. Explanatory notes for filling up the certificates:
- a) He has adhered to the time schedule specified in the contract in dispatching the documents drawing pursuant to Technical Specifications.
- b) He has supervised the commissioning of the item in time i.e. within the period specified in the contract form the date of intimation by the Purchaser in respect of the installation of the plant.
- c) Training of personnel has been done by the contractor specified in the contract.
- d) in the event of documents/drawings having not been contractor or installation and commissioning of the plant have been delayed on act of the contractor, the extent of delay should always be mentioned.

OR

The contractor has failed to fulfill his contractual obligations with regard to the following i.e. instruction or training etc.

- a)
- b)
- c)
- d)
- 5. The amount of recovery on account of failure of the contractor to meet his contractual obligations is as indicated in endorsement of the letter.

Signature		···•
Name		
Designation	n with stamp	

Member Secretary

Haryana State Pollution Control Board C-11, Sector -6, Panchkula, Haryana, India

VOLUME-II

TECHNICAL SPECIFICATIONS FOR REAL TIME WATER QUALITY MONITORING STATIONS (RTWQMS)

TECHNICAL SPECIFICATIONS OF RTWQMS

TECHNICAL SPECIFICATIONS FOR THE DATA SUPPLY OF THE REAL TIME WATER QUALITY MONITORING SYSTEM (RTWOMS) WITH SENSORS ON THE BARRAGE/BRIDGE OVER RIVER

REAL TIME WATER QUALITY MONITORING STATION

In- Situ/Extractive Online Continuous multi parameter river water quality monitoring instrument with sensors / instruments equipped for measurement of water quality parameters comprising of standalone remote water monitoring stations / system with GSM/ GPRS modem and other communication modes for transmission of data on real time basis to a central receiving station to be located at HSPCB, Head Office, Panchkula. The Water Monitoring Stations shall provide real time data through GSM/GPRS network at scheduled interval and as and when requested by the users. Communication and Data transfer module with necessary cabling and software and Mounting structure for the installation of the above system

The Water quality monitoring system should have provision for operation on batteries and for the Data Transfer module by Solar power battery backup for minimum 72 Hrs to be provided at site.

1.0 Background

The Yamuna is the second largest tributary river of the Ganga and the longest tributary in India. Originating from the Yamunotri Glacier at a height of 6,387 metres (20,955 ft) on the southwestern slopes of Banderpooch peaks of the Lower Himalaya in Uttarakhand, it travels a total length of 1,376 kilometres (855 mi) and has a drainage system of 366,223 square kilometres (141,399 sq mi), 40.2% of the entire Ganges Basin. It merges with the Ganges at Triveni Sangam, Allahabad.

The River Ghaggar originates in Sirmour District of Himachal Pradesh and travels a length of 320 KM through the State of Haryana, Punjab & Rajasthan. It enters the territory of Haryana in Panchkula District near Kalka. It passes through the district Panchkula to Mohali in Punjab. Then again it enters in Ambala and then re-enters into district Patiala in Punjab. It again enters in Haryana in Kaithal district and then crosses to Sangrur district. It again enters in Fatehabad district and crosses to Mansa district and re-enter in Haryana in Sirsa district and finally enter in Hanumangarh district of Rajasthan.

2.0 Scope of Service

The HSPCB has a requirement for measurement and delivery of real-time water quality data from numerous points along the River Yamuna and Ghagggar. Data Service Provider will set up, install and operationalize 5 RTWQM Stations which shall have also a camera with day and night vision at each of the station. The camera at each of the station should provide footage/ visualization of the real time value (screen) and the nearby area including the sensors immersed in the River, at every hour. The connectivity of the camera is to be provided to HSPCB through the web portals on 24x7 basis and should operate continuously. The data for one month should be kept as backup retrievable through the software provided to HSPCB. The resolution of the camera should be kept as 352 x 240 pixel or above.

It is clarified that streaming footage is not required to be supplied by the Data Service Provider. Every hour, only one view (photograph in form of an image) of surrounding will be sent along with hourly data. Time lag, if any, in submission of photographs, will not be considered, for payment as same (15 minutes).

Some of the proposed locations may be changed within the same vicinity of the given locations. However, all the locations will be finalized before award of the Contract.

The Appendix A of the Contract provides details of services to be provided by the Service Provider.

Pre-Qualification for the Bidders for the Project:

The Tenderer/Bidders shall need to qualify the following criteria to Bid for the mentioned job.

- 1- System should be UV-Visible double beam spectrometry with multipoint calibration facility and complied with latest CPCB Direction &new SOP published by CPCB.
- 2- System Must have automatic water matrix change adaption with onboard library of calibration spectras for different industrial matrices with provision of accumulating further calibration matrices along with data validation facility with features to transmit raw and validated data to central & State server.
- 3- System should have remote access from central server provisioning log file access, provision for multi-server data transmission from each station without intermediate PC or plant server, provision to send system alarm to central server in case any changes made in configuration or calibration, provision to record all operation information in logfile.
- 4- Must have low operation and maintenance requirements with **no** chemical consumption and recurring cost of consumables and spares.
- 5- The communication between Remote and Central Receiving station must be two-way communication system utilizing GPRS and remote station should have built in GPS receiver for automatic position determination.
- 6- Multiple Component Analysis with Pattern Recognition & Library of Effluent Matrix Variant with Multi- Point.
- 7- Validation without any coefficient calculation from one parameter to another.

Activity Schedule

The Service Provider is required to supply hourly real-time water quality data from 5 locations.

Based on requirements of quality measurements at various locations, Service Provider would install equipments referred to as "Sensors" in this bidding document for measuring all the parameters at various locations as specified. Various

parameters of water quality have been assigned different weightages for the purpose of payment, as detailed in Clause 35.3.2 of GCC. Parameters having a weightage of 10 are placed in Category A while parameters having weightages of 5 are placed in Category B.

Bidder's attention is drawn to this section: Performance Specifications which provide in details, the methodology for supply of data of real time water quality measurement to the Employer/ Data Qualifications Consultant and validation of the data for determining eligibility of data for payment.

The Bidder is required to quote a lump-sum price in the bid form provided in Section IV of Volume I for supply of real time water quality data in accordance with Volume II and contract conditions for a period of 5 years from the date of commencement of data from all 5 locations.

Payments will be made for data validated by Data Qualification Consultant (as and when appointed). Bidder may refer to payment schedule stipulated in GCC 35.3.1. Bidder's attention is drawn to GCC 35.3.2 read with corresponding provision in GCC in regard to price adjustment applicable to contract price.

2.1 Validation of data

Data that is delivered to the Employer by the Service Provider as part of this contract will be subjected to a data validation process. The data validation process, handled under a separate contract, will use the Service Provider's self-audit (calibration) process to qualify the data for purchase in addition to inspecting the data for artifacts and irregularities. The results of data validation will be advised by the Data Qualification Consultant (An organization, Consultant or Agency) to the Service Provider within 24 hours of receipt of data at the Employer's Data Center except in cases where Employer wishes to examine the result before a communication to the Service Provider. Data validation contractor will be engaged by HSPCB before supply of data by Data Service Provider contractor.

3.0 Description, Requirement and Specification of Services

3.1 Data Collection

Data will be collected from 5 locations which will be fixed or floating stations for measurement of hourly data.

3.1.1 Station Parameters and Measurement Specifications

Listed water quality parameters will be measured at all the 5 RTWQM locations. Details of parameters to be measured at each location are given respectively in Annexure I at Appendix A.

The Employer will obtain No Objection Certificates (NOCs), if required, from the Owners/Agencies of all locations. Copies of NOCs obtained from the Agencies and photographs of all locations will be uploaded at Employer's website

3.1.2 General Information Regarding Measurement Types

3.1.2.1 Fixed Stations

Fixed station sites are points along the waterway reach which are indicated in Annexure I of Appendix A where measurements of water quality are required on hourly basis. Measurements will be made at or near the portion of the stream where there is a continuous water flow from the surface of water is experienced. Sensor packages can utilize bridge piers or other structures

keeping in view the need for protecting the sensor package as also ensuring unobstructed flow of water in the vicinity of the sensor package as far possible. Since these stations are fixed by utilizing bridge piers or other structures, these are unmovable and hence called fixed stations.

If the flow regime changes over a period of time, the instruments/equipment must be relocated in consultation and approval of HSPCB to a point where maximum flow is experienced.

3.1.2.2 Floating Stations

Floating Stations: Floating stations are mounted stations on boat with Sensors and all the accessories along with a solar panel fitted on the roof of the boat to provide data. The boat remains anchored near the bank of river at a reasonable distance to provide representative water quality data. Since these stations are movable, these stations are called floating stations.

Both type of RTWQM stations - The fixed and floating station will have data automatically relayed to the Employer's Data Center within 5 minutes of the measurement/observation to qualify for payment.

3.2 Data Collection and Delivery

All hourly water quality data from all locations will be delivered initially to the Service Provider's dedicated server set up in the Employer's Data Center on real time basis. Such server shall be set up and maintained by the Service Provider at his cost throughout the duration of the contract, as stipulated at **Appendix A**. The data will then be transferred to the Employer's server housed in the same Data Center on real time basis. At the time of data uploading.....system, server time should be indicated. The Service Provider shall provide the data as text files, one file for each transmission and the data will be placed in a directory as indicated by the Data Qualification Consultant.

The data transfer will be implemented using the SFTP service or other open communication standard as mutually agreed between the Service Provider and the Employer.

3.2.1 Data Collection

The fixed stations will measure water quality parameters once per hour ± 5 minutes and transfer all log data within 5 minutes of measurement.

3.2.2 Data Storage

The Service Provider shall store all real-time data collected during the duration of the contract. This storage shall be 100% online. This means that any data values can be called up instantaneously through the duration of the contract. In the event of any contingency, the Service Provider will provide access on the Employer's request for downloading any part or the entire database maintained in the Service Provider's server.

3.3 Quality Assurance and Control through Sensor Calibration

The Service Provider is required to perform regular calibration and adjustment of instruments using traceable standards as available.

3.3.1 Calibration Frequency

- 1. All instruments shall be calibrated at frequencies no longer than once every 14 days. If the instruments are not calibrated within the 14 days since the previous calibration, then any data delivered will not be taken up for validation and hence the same shall not qualify for payment. However, after the calibration is done and the same is witnessed by the Data Qualification Consultant, data will then be considered for validation/payment.
- 2. To enable Data Qualification Consultant to be present for witnessing the calibration of instruments, the Service Provider shall submit quarterly schedule and method of calibration to the Employer. The schedule for calibration will be approved by the Employer and the Data Qualification Consultant will present himself for witnessing the calibration on the date, time and locations specified in the schedule.

3.3.2 Traceable Standards

The Service Provider will use portable meters for calibration of the sensors and the calibration be traceable to Indian Standards / American Public Health Association (APHA) (Water & Wastewater Examination Methodology Edition In case of two consecutive calibrations the "drift" is found more than double of the accuracy ranges indicated in the table at para 3.8 of this section, the Service Provider will require to replace the instrument. The meters will be used to the extent possible; otherwise samples will be taken and subjected to laboratory analysis by the Service Provider. The laboratory process may be audited at any time by the Employer or the Data Qualification Consultant.

For BOD, the Service Provider is required to collect the sample, preserve it in the field during transportation and bring the same to any BIS/NABL certified laboratory for analysis. BOD will be measured at $27 \square C$ for 3 days (Refer IS 3025, Part 44:1993) The BOD analysis of the samples collected for calibration will be carried out by the Service Provider in accordance to the procedure provided by the Employer.

3.3.3 Calibration Results

Upon completing field calibration, the station parameters will be set to match the calibration results.

3.3.4 Documentation

The results of the sensor calibration will be documented and made available in real-time on Employer's Data Center. The calibration entry must include the date, time, station, sensor initial reading, sensor adjustment through calibration, sensor final reading, comments on general station/sensor observations, and names of person(s) present during the calibration.

3.4 Mandatory Measurement Conditions

Mandatory measurement conditions will be used to qualify the data for payment. The Service Provider must assure the conditions are in place. It is expected that the Service Provider will confirm these measurement conditions at the time of the 14-day calibration visits. The Data Qualification Consultant will confirm the measurement conditions during the same calibration visits (if appointed).

3.4.1 Representativeness of Data

Measurement representativeness will be determined by self-audit in the presence of the Data Qualification Consultant at a minimum, with the Employer joining at times. If the minimum measurement conditions cannot be met, all data from the respective station will not be qualified for payment.

3.4.1.1 Minimum Flow

In order to qualify for payment, the measurement must be representative of water conditions in the main channel of the river. The main channel is defined as the portion of the river where the velocity of water is at a maximum. The measurement will be deemed non-representative if the velocity at the measurement point is less than 10% of that of the main channel.

3.4.1.2 Measurement Depth

The continuous monitoring sensors shall perform measurements with the available depth of water. Real Time Water Quality Monitoring sensors shall remain submerged in water at least 0.5 m from the surface water.

3.6 Completeness of Data Requirement for Payment

The Service Provider shall maintain the equipments and sensors are in good working order throughout the period of contract. Data supplied for any hour shall be considered for validation and payment provided following conditions are satisfied:

a) The qualified measurements received from each such location shall not be less than 90% of the measurements specified for it.

3.7 Parameters to be measured and Specifications

The parameters wise Ranges, Accuracy and the Resolution are given below:

S.No.	Parameter	Range*	Accuracy (the greater of)	Resolution
1	Free Ammonia	0.2 to 100 mg/L	± 10%	0.1 mg/L
2	BOD	0.0 to 500 mg/L	± 10%	1.0 mg/L
3	COD	5.0 to 500 mg/L	±10%	1.0 mg/L
4	DO	0.2 to 20 mg/L	± 10%	0.2 mg/L
5	EC	1.0 to 5000 µS/cm	± 10%	1.0 μS/cm
6	Nitrate	0.3 to 50 mg/L	± 10%	0.1 mg/L as N
7	pН	0.0 to 14 units of pH	± 0.2	0.01 units of pH
8	Turbidity	0-2000 NTU	± 10%	1.0 NTU
9	TOC	1-500 mg/l	± 10%	1 mg/L
10	Chloride	5 to 200 mg/l	± 10%	1.0 mg/L

^{*}Maximum value of the range indicated is only indicative. These can be extended by dilution /as per requirement. The range, accuracy and the resolution mentioned above is generic based on analysis of water quality parameters in laboratory.

The parameters will be analyzed as per Indian Standard (IS) / American Public Health Association (APHA) Methodology of Examination of Water & Wastewater.

Appendix A—Description of the Services

- The Service Provider shall supply real-time water quality data from 5 RTWQM stations on hourly basis. Payments shall be made by the Employer for the said data after it has been validated by the Data Qualification Consultant (as and when appointed), subject to conditions of the Contract. Excepting advance payment and payment for validated data, the Service Provider shall not be entitled to any other payments.
- 2. The Employer, if required, will obtain No Objection Certificates from the concerned authorities/agencies under whose control the said 5 locations to enable the Service Provider to install the required equipment/sensors for measuring the water quality.
- 3. The stations will be monitored for all the 10 parameters for uniformity. The water quality parameters, to be measured for each location are provided in **Annexure I** in this Appendix.
- 4. The Service Provider shall undertake the following activities for successfully discharging its obligations under the contract:
 - i. Visits to the identified sites for finalizing exact locations for carrying out civil works (if any) and or mounting the equipment/sensors.
 - ii. Execute an agreement, if required, at Service Provider's cost with the owner/agencies of the sites associating representative of Employer / Data Qualification Consultant (if appointed) before starting any civil works.
 - iii. Finalization of the specification of instruments /sensors for each location and procurement.
 - iv. Finalizing arrangement for requirements of power supply and communication network for each location.
 - v. Development of facility to calibrate the instruments periodically as specified in Clause 3.3 of Volume II.
 - vi. Installation of a dedicated server or computer system and its maintenance at the Service Provider's cost, for receiving data from 5 locations for onward transmission to the Employer. The dedicated server shall be housed at the Employer's Data Centre or which necessary space and power supply will be made available free of cost. The employer shall make necessary arrangements such as Power back up (UPS, Generator) and Internet connections etc.
 - vii. Commissioning the equipment/instruments and making all arrangement at Service Provider's cost for the safety and security of the equipment and personnel.
- viii. Maintenance of the equipment and instruments and periodic calibration of instruments as specified in Volume II- Technical Specification.

Annexure 1

Parameters

	1 W1 W1110 V01 S				
S.No.	Parameter	Range*	Accuracy (the greater of)	Resolution	
1	Free Ammonia	0.2 to 100 mg/L	± 10%	0.1 mg/L	
2	BOD	0.0 to 500 mg/L	0.0 to 500 mg/L ± 10%		
3	COD	5.0 to 500 mg/L	±10%	1.0 mg/L	
4	DO	0.2 to 20 mg/L	20 mg/L ± 10%		
5	EC	1.0 to 5000 µS/cm	± 10%	1.0 μS/cm	
6	Nitrate	0.3 to 50 mg/L	± 10%	0.1 mg/L as N	
7	рН	0.0 to 14 units of pH	± 0.2	0.01 units of pH	
8	Turbidity	0-2000 NTU	± 10%	1.0 NTU	
9	TOC	1-500 mg/l	± 10%	1 mg/L	
10	Chloride	5 to 200 mg/l	0 mg/l $\pm 10\%$ 1.0 mg/L		

Qualification Information

- 1. Individual
 Bidders or
 Individual
 Members of
 Joint
 Ventures
- 1.1 Constitution or legal status of Bidder: [attach copy]

Place of registration: [insert]

Principal place of business: [insert]

Power of attorney of signatory of Bid: [attach]

- 1.2 Total annual volume of Services performed in five years in INR
- 1.3 Services performed as prime Service Provider on the provision of Services of a similar nature and volume over the last five years. The values should be indicated in the same currency used for Item 1.2 above. Also list details of work under way or committed, including expected completion date.

Project name	Name of	Type of Services	Value of contract
and country	Employer and	provided and year of	
	contact person	completion	
(a)			
(b)			

1.4 Major items of Service Provider's Equipment proposed for carrying out the Services. List all information requested below. Refer also to ITB Sub-Clause 2.4.5 (d).

Item of equipment	Description, make, and age (years)	Condition (new, good, poor) and number available	Owned, leased (from whom?), or to be purchased (from whom?)
(a)	J (/ /		
(b)			

1.5 Qualifications and experience of key personnel proposed for administration and execution of the Contract. Attach biographical data. Refer also to ITB Sub-Clause 2.4.3 and Clause 3.

Position	Name	Years of experience (general)	Years of experience in proposed position
(a)			
(b)			

- 1.6 Financial reports for the last five years: balance sheets, profit and loss statements, auditors' reports, etc. List below and attach copies.
- 1.7 Name, address, and telephone, telex, and facsimile numbers of banks that may provide references if contacted by the Employer.
- 1.8 Information regarding any litigation, current or within the last five years, in which the Bidder is or has been involved.

Other party(ies)	Cause of dispute	Details of litigation award	Amount involved
(a)		<u> </u>	
(b)			

1.9 Proposed Program (service work method and schedule). Descriptions and charts, as necessary, to comply with the requirements of the bidding documents.

2. Joint Ventures

- 2.1 Attach the power of attorney of the signatory(ies) of the Bid authorizing signature of the Bid on behalf of the joint venture.
- 2.2 Attach the Agreement among all partners of the joint venture (and which is legally binding on all partners), which shows that
 - (a) all partners shall be jointly and severally liable for the execution of the Contract in accordance with the Contract terms;
 - (b) one of the partners will be nominated as being in charge, authorized to incur liabilities, and receive instructions for and on behalf of any and all partners of the joint venture; and
 - (c) the execution of the entire Contract, including payment, shall be done exclusively with the partner in charge.

3. Additional Requirements

3.1 Bidders are required to provide rate quotation in the Financial Data Sheet in excel format which shall be uploaded on e-procurement portal. The bidders should understand the definition of Fixed and Floating RTWQM Stations and read the requirement properly before filling up the Rate quotation.

Declaration format for customs /excise duty exemption for materials/ equipment bought for providing services

(Bidder's Na	me and <i>i</i>	Address)				
					To: (Name of the Em	
Dear Sir:						
	Certific	Re: <i>[Name o</i> cate for Impo		_	 Goods/ Equipme	ent
waivers w	hich we	have conside	red in our	bid and	obtaining custor in case of failure I not compensat	to receive such
the neces	sary cert	_	ms of the	Governn	nent of India Ce	oyer for issue of ntral Excise
3. The gunder:	oods/con	struction equ	ipment for	which o	certificates are re	equired are as
Items	Make/ Brand Name	Capacity [where applicable]	Quantity	Value	State whether it will be procured locally or imported [if so from which country]	Remarks regarding justification for the quantity and their usage in works
Goods						
[a] Bitume n						
[b]Others						
Construction	n Equip	ment		<u> </u>		
[a]						
[b]						
[c]						

[d]

- 4. We agree that no modification to the above list is permitted after bids are opened.
 - 5. We agree that the certificate will be issued only to the extent considered reasonable by the Employer for the work, based on the Bill of Quantities and the construction programme and methodology as furnished by us alongwith the bid.
 - 6. We confirm that the above goods will be exclusively used for the construction of the above work and construction equipment will not be sold or otherwise disposed of in any manner for a period of five years from the date of acquisition.

Date:		(Signature)	
Place:		(Printed Name)	
	- (Danimation)		
	(Designation)	(Common Seal)	

This certificate will be issued within 60 days of signing of contract and no subsequent changes will be permitted.

Appendix B-Key Personnel and Subcontractors

- List under: C-1 Titles [and names, if already available], detailed job descriptions and minimum qualifications of foreign Personnel to be assigned to work in the Government's country, and staff-months for each.
- C-2 Same as C-1 for Key foreign Personnel to be assigned to work outside the Government's country.
- C-3 List of approved Subcontractors (if already available); same information with respect to their Personnel as in C-1 or C-2.
- C-4 Same information as C-1 for Key local Personnel.